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Declaration by Chair
of the Responsible Body

Inaccordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, 1am
pleasedtopresent the Victorian Health Promotion Foundation’s
Annual Report for the year ending 30 June 2017.

7wa0/@@m

Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM
Deputy Chair of the Board

15 August 2017
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Section 1: Year in review

Our origin

VicHealth (the Victorian Health Promotion Foundation) is the
world’s first health promotion foundation, created in 1987 with
amandate to promote good health. We were established with
all-Party support by the State Parliament of Victoria with the
statutory objectives mandated by the Tobacco Act 1987 (Vic)
(the Act). Theresponsible ministeris the Minister for Health,
The Hon. JillHennessy MP

The objects of VicHealth as set outinthe Act are to:

» fundactivity related tothe promotion of good health, safety
orthe prevention andearly detection of disease

* increaseawareness of programs for promoting good health
inthe community through the sponsorship of sports, the arts
and popular culture

+ encourage healthy lifestylesinthe community and support
activitiesinvolving participationin healthy pursuits

» fundresearchanddevelopmentactivitiesin support of
these objects.

Functions

The functions of VicHealth as set outinthe Act are to:
» promoteitsobjects

» make grants from the Health Promotion Fund for activities,
facilities, projects or research programsin furtherance of the
objects of VicHealth

« provide sponsorships for sporting or cultural activities

» keepstatisticsand otherrecordsrelating to the achievement
of the objects of VicHealth

» provide advice to the Minister on mattersrelatedtoits
objectsreferred by the Ministerto VicHealth and generally in
relation tothe achievement of its objects

» make loans or otherwise provide financialaccommodation
foractivities, facilities, projects or research programsin
furtherance of the objects of VicHealth

» consultregularly withrelevant Government Departments
and agencies and to liaise with persons and organisations
affected by the operation of this Act

« performsuchother functionsasare conferred on VicHealth by
thisorany otherAct.

VicHealth performs and manages these functions by:

« developingastrategic plan, including concept, context
and operations
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* initiating, facilitatingand organising the development of
projectsand programs to fulfilthe strategic plan

» ensuringan excellent standard of project management for
allprojectand program grants paid by VicHealthdeveloping
systemstoevaluate theimpactsanoutcomes of grants

» ensuringthat suchknowledgeistransferredtothe
wider community.

Our commitment

» Fairness —we promote fairnessand opportunity for better
health forall Victorians, by making health equity anaimof all
ourwork.

» Evidence-basedaction —we create and use evidence to
identify theissuesthat need actionand to guide policy and
practice by VicHealth and our partners.

* Working with community — we work with communities to
set priorities, make decisions and create solutions.

e Partnershipsacrosssectors —we collaborate with
governmentsatalllevelsand formalliances with others
inhealth, sports, research, education, the artsand
community, aswellas nurture strongrelationships with
health promotion practitioners and the media.

Our difference

VicHealth has played auniquerole sinceitsinception. We
champion positive influences for health and seek to reduce
negative influences. This means helping individuals and
communities make better-informed decisions, and shaping
environments that support healthier choices.

Our strategyincorporates abehaviouralinsights lens that
considerstheinfluences on people’s behavior and choices.
Thiscomplements existingapproaches with new waystorealise
the health forall Victorians. Our culture of innovation enables
ustobeacatalyst for,and early adopter of, new health
promotion approaches.

We work in partnership with all sectorsasatrusted,
independent source of evidence-based practice and advice. We
playacriticalroleincreatingand strengthening this evidence
basethrough ourrigorousresearch and evaluation of our actions.



Chair’s report

In 1987, the Victorian Parliament established VicHealth,
the world’s first health promotion foundation, as part of
the Tobacco Act. Thirty yearson, aswe reflect onahost of
achievements we acknowledge thereis stillmuch to do.

VicHealth’s creation represented a significant policy change
for the Victorian Government and this new entity had to be
established quickly ina challenging landscape. The pragmatism
anddrive of the foundersand first staff team set the tone for
VicHealth asadynamicandinnovative organisation, and those
values hold true today.

Persistentand emerging health issues continue to challenge
us, while the rapid pace of global change we are seeingin
technology, society and sustainability require corresponding
shiftsinour thinking. VicHealth has already shown the
necessary adaptability, whichis evidenced in our updated
Action Agenda for Health Promotion (Action Agenda).

InJuly 2016, we released Destination Wellbeing: VicHealth’s
updated Action Agenda, setting out how we will achieve our
goals. Destination Wellbeing builds on the inaugural Action
Agenda, releasedin 2013, which for the first time set out a
10-yearaction plan for VicHealth that reflects the changing
environmentin which we operate.

With the completion of the fourth year of our Action Agenda -
and the first year working towards its 2016—-19 priorities —
we cansee the progressand are well-placed torespond tothe
challengesand opportunities we face.

VicHealth’s ground-breaking contribution to global health
promotion and the people of Melbourne over the last 30 years

was recognised with the prestigious Melbourne Achiever Award.

Atthe awards eventin May, the Committee for Melbourne
acknowledged VicHealth as a significant and sustained
contributortoevidence-based health promotion that will leave
alastinglegacy, afitting tribute in our anniversary year. This s
afittingtribute tothe efforts of past Boards and staff members
of VicHealth over the past 30 years.

We have seen much change since our inception, as well
asenduring health issues. Obesity is steadily increasing,
particularly in disadvantaged groups. Smoking rates have
halved and alcohol consumptionis reducing overall, but
smokingand risky drinking continue to cause significant

harm, particularly among populations or groups experiencing
disadvantage. Our lifestyles have become increasingly
sedentary over the past 50 years. Fewer thanoneinthree
Australians get enough physical activity to benefit their health.
Twointhree Victorian adults, and onein four of our children,
areoverweight or obese. Violence continues to be the most
significant contributing risk factor to Victorian women’s health
and lives before the age of 45.

Most people drink alcoholresponsibly but almost 500,000
Victoriansdrink 11 or more drinks on asingle occasionona
monthly basis. Overall, young people are drinking less and
startingtodrink laterin life than previous generations, but
someare stilldrinking large amounts and are unaware that
binge drinking can cause permanent brain damage. While we
areworking toaddress the societal pressure to get drunk, we
are hampered by alcohol being so cheap, readily available and
widely promoted.

Successful public health strategies over several decades

have seen smokingratesin Australia decline steadily, to be
among the lowestin the world. But rates remain high in groups
experiencing disadvantage. In Victoria, smoking leads to the
lossof around 4000 lives every year, and costs the state aver
$10 billion.

Almost half of all Victorians will experience a mentalillnessin
their lifetime, with the first onset of symptoms most common
inteenagersand youngadults. Oneineightyoung Victorians say
theyareintensely lonely. Globalemployment trends including
moves towards automation and digitisation are changing the
jobmarket foryoung people and creating new challenges that
willmean they need greater resilience and social connection.

We are pleased that the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals
for 2030include anew gender equality goal that presentsa
much stronger view than the earlier, corresponding Millennium
Development Goal. Rather than focusing onaccess to education,
ittakesabroaderview. As wellas focusingonreformstoensure
equalaccesstoeconomicresources, the goalrequires women
to have fulland effective participationin political, economic
and public leadership. Underpinning thisis the vital call for the
elimination of all forms of violence against women.

Icongratulate the Victorian Government ontherelease

of its Free fromviolence strategyinresponse to the
recommendations of the Royal Commission on Family
Violence. Theimplementation of this strategy, including the
establishment of the first family violence prevention agency,
issettohaveahugeimpactoverthe comingyears. The strategy
builds on the evidence in Change the story, Australia’s national
prevention framework launched by ANROWS, Our Watch and
VicHealthin 2015.

By ensuring thatallour strategies and programs are backed by
rigorous evidence, VicHealth continues to be atrusted friend
toour many partnersand the communities we serve. VicHealth
has looked to collaborate with new and different partners, as
wellas developing our existing partnerships, to tackle our new
challenges. These partnershipsinsectorsincluding health, arts,
sportsworkplace education and digital, as wellasacrossall
levels of government, help us expand the reach of our work and
toco-designinnovative solutions that can beintegrated across
the community.
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We continue our focus on BehaviouralInsights through our
Leading Thinker initiative asameans todrive change. We are
heartened to see this approach featuringin the work of our
partnersand numerous government agencies. The creation of
abehaviouralinsights unit within the Victorian Department of
Premier and Cabinet and the inclusion of behaviouralinsights-
related driversinthe Victorian Government’s Gender Equality
Strategy, Safe and Strong, are very positive developments.

Onbehalf of the VicHealth Board, | would like to thank the
Victorian Minister for Health, The Hon. JilLHennessy MP, for her
supportand leadership. I also thank the Minister for Mental
Health, The Hon. Martin Foley MP, the Minister for Sport, The
Hon. John Eren MP, the Minister for Women and Prevention of
Family Violence, The Hon. Fiona Richardson MP, other Ministers
and their Advisers, Members of the Victorian Parliament,
andthe government departmentsand agencies, who have
supported VicHealth this year. Qur work for the people of
Victoria unitesus and allows us to achieve much together.

lamvery grateful to the members of the VicHealth Board and
Committees, who have beentrusted advisers and have made
aninvaluable contribution to our work during 2016-17. I thank
Deputy Chair Nicole Livingstone 0AM; Board members Susan
Crow, Nick Green, Margaret Hamilton AQO, Collen Hartland MLC,
The Hon. Wendy Lovell MLC, Veronica Pardo, Sarah Ralph, Simon
Ruth, Natalie Suleyman MP, Stephen Walter; and new Board
membersin 2016-17: Dr Sally Fawkes and Ben Hartung.

I would like to thank our past Chair, Emeritus Professor John
Catford, for hisimmeasurable contribution during his two years
as Chairand twoyearsas Deputy Chair. John helped to shape
VicHealth’s priority directionsin the Action Agenda. | also wish
toacknowledge the valuable contribution of Sally Freeman,
whose termas Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
endedin October.
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As Chair of the Board, lam pleased that VicHealth continues
topractice strong corporate governance with balanced
budgets, contemporary policies, progressive planning and
effective resource management. Thisisatribute to our Board,
Finance Audit and Risk Committee, staffand CEQ. Jerril Rechter
continuestobeaninspiringand influential leader for VicHealth
and has beenatremendous supporttomeinmy firstyearas
Chair. Thank you Jerril.  would also like to congratulate her on
being named in The Australian Financial Review & Westpac 100
Women of Influence 2016.

Successinhealth promotion does not happeninisolation —it
takesacoordinated approach fromacross the community. |

am gratefultoVicHealth’s many and varied partners for your
supportandinspiration over the year. The commitment from our
partnersandthe skills and experience of the VicHealth Board
and staff will propelus towards our vision of: One million more
Victorians with better health and wellbeing by 2023.

I have great pleasurein presenting this Annual Report on
VicHealth’s many achievementsin 2016-17.

Fiona McCormack
Chair ofthe Board

Following the VicHealth Board approving this Annual Report
on15August 2017, we were deeply saddened to subsequently
learn of the passing of the Hon. Fiona Richardson MP — Minister
for Women and Prevention of Family Violence. Fionawas a
fearless advocate for women and children who had experienced
the terrible toll of family violence, giving a voice to those who
have too often beensilenced. She also had the courage to share
her own persaonalstory, shiningalight on the devastating
impact of violence against women. We must all continue to
build on Fiona’sincredible legacy.



Chief Executive Officer’s report

Year four of our 10-year Action Agenda for Health Promotion has
broughtarange of new opportunities to advance the VicHealth
vision of: One million more Victorians with better health and
wellbeing by 2023.

For 30years, VicHealth has been a pioneerin health promotion
with aunique role within Victoria to keep people healthy, happy
and well - preventing chronic disease and keeping people out
of the medical system. Our work provides individuals, groups
and organisations with the latest evidence-based information
and advice to make decisions which support the health of all
Victorians. We understand how changesin the environment can
promote health, and draw on practices that ensure we achieve
the best outcomes for those who need it most. Ouraimis that
every Victorian, no matter their situation orresources, hasthe
best chance for good health and wellbeing.

VicHealthis committedto five strategicimperatives that have
the greatest potential to reduce disease burden and bring about
the greatest measurable health gains. These are: promoting
healthy eating, encouraging regular physical activity,
preventing tobacco use, preventing harm fromalcoholand
improving mental wellbeing.

We continue to apply the VicHealth framework for health
equity, Fair Foundations, to our work, recognising that good
healthisnotdistributed evenly in the community. People with
low incomes, limited education or unskilled occupations,
those from culturally diverse backgrounds, Aboriginal people,
women, peaple with a disability and LGBTI communities often
experience poorer health than the rest of the population.
Toreduce healthinequities experienced by these groups, we
work toaddress the underlyingdrivers of health and wellbeing
and the social processesthatdistribute them unequally
acrosssociety.

Innovation has always been part of our DNA. To us, innovation
means discovering how to accelerate better health and
wellbeing outcomes for Victorians. Pinpointing the strategies,
approaches, insights and collaborations that can fast track
our aimto create healthier lives. Innavation is embedded
inour operating model, organisation structure, processes
andreporting, funding criteriaand systems. We value it
asanessential business practice that keeps us delivering
better outcomes.

Despite ongoing and emerging health challenges, positive new
developmentsinVicHealth’s operatingenvironment will help us
deliver better health and wellbeingimpacts for Victorians.

Thisyear, we were pleased to partner with the Department of
Premier and Cabinet (DPC) Office for Prevention and Women’s
Equality tohold three ‘Preventionis Possible’ forums. The
forums aimed toinform and build capacity for policy makers at
alllevels of governmentand the community toimplement the
Victorian Government’s new strategy and help create a future
free from family violence.

Overthelast decade, VicHealth has used a public health
approachtoinvestinthe primary prevention of violence against
women. We have worked with partners fromarange of sectors
tobuild policy, undertake research and implement programs
that promote equaland respectful relationships between men
and women. We are now working to ensure that our collective
body of knowledge isused toinform the work of a growing
number of organisations committed to preventing violence
against women.

Asthe sector has grown and flourished, VicHealth has
broadenedits focusto consider the relationship between
gender equality and health and wellbeing. VicHealth’s Changing
our Game program seeks toadvance gender equality in sport for
women and girls. Through the program, we continue to support
the recommendations from the Victorian Government’s Women
inSpartand Active Recreation taskforce, and align with the
Government’s Gender Equality Strategy and women and girlsin
sportinitiative.

Over the year, we worked with both new and longstanding
partnerstofind innovative solutions to collectively tackle
complex health and wellbeing challenges. VicHealth
playsacriticalroleinbringing together diverse groups and
organisations. Thisincludes all levels of government, as well
asgroups and individuals workingin health, sports, research,
education, the arts, health promotion, the media

and local communities.

We hosted the 16th AnnualInternational Network of Health
Promotion Foundations (INHPF) General Meeting, attended

by health promotion leaders from across Asia Pacific to share
expertise and the latest research developments. As part of our
roleasaWHO Collaborating Centre for Leadership in Health
Promotion, we were proud to present VicHealth asa model of
asuccessfulhealth promotion foundation for other countries
inthe Western Pacificregion to follow.

Together with the World Health Organization, the International
Network of Health Promotion Foundations, CSIRO and the
Melbourne School of Globaland Population Health, we convened
the Destination Wellbeing forum. The forum’s objective was to
refine globaland local priorities and to prompt a new wave of
health promotionresearch.

We were honoured to beinvited to participatein the 9th Global
Conference on Health Promotion in Shanghai. The Conference,
which culminatedin the ShanghaiDeclaration, focused on
the Sustainable Development Goals and the key role health
promotion can playinachieving them.

Similar themes emerged at the 15th World Congress on
Public Health in Melbourne, where we were delighted to
presentarange of research findings, as well as taking partin
celebrations forthe 50th anniversary of the World Federation
of Public Health Assaciations and hosting a Salt Reduction
Breakfast Forum.
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The Congressalsogave usagreat opportunity tocelebrate
VicHealth’s 30th anniversary with anumber of our key localand
international stakeholders, including WHO Regional Director for
the Western Pacific Dr Shin Young-soo.

We organised the first Kids Camp Out at Government House.
Children from Sunshine North Primary School camped outin
tentsaspartofaprogramtoencourage themtoleadactive
livesand have the confidence to try new experiences. The
overnight camp was hosted by VicHealth’s Patron-in-Chief the
Hon. Linda DessauACand her husband, Mr Anthony Howard QC.
The grade 5and 6 children took partinactivities with a focus on
fitness, funand healthy eatingas we look to a future where all
Victoriansare moreactive and better equipped to make healthy
food choices.

Our Leading Thinkersinitiative continues to open up exciting
new ways toaddressthe entrenched beliefs and behaviours
that shape our culture. Professor Iris Bohnet and Dr Jeni
Klugman from the Harvard Kennedy School have taken up

our second Leading Thinkers residency and will be working
withus overthe next three years. Building on the behavioural
insights approach used by ourinaugural Leading Thinker

Dr David Halpern, who worked on obesity, Professor Bohnet and
Dr Klugman will focus on gender equality. They are starting with
two trials: the first, on gender biasin recruitment, has been
incorporatedintothe Victorian Government’s RecruitSmarter
project. The second trial will use data analysis to look at
women’s profile in media, particularly in sport.

We continued toinvestin women’s sportandactive recreation
through the #ChangeOurGame campaign launched by Minister
Hennessey, and Active Club Grants funding that prioritised
clubs wanting to offer more opportunities for women and girls.
We also partnered with the Melbourne Stars and Melbourne
Renegades cricket teams for the second Women’s Big Bash
League, and with Carlton, Western Bulldogs and Melbourne
football clubs for theinaugural AFL Women’s season.

Funding to Cancer Council Victoria for the Quit Program
continuestobeour largestand longest-standing investment.
Through this effective program anditsimpactful anti-smoking
campaigns, we support delivery of a comprehensive and
integrated approach toreducing harms from tobacco

across Victoria.

We continued our work to address the health inequities
experienced by the people livingin the Latrobe Valley in our
role delivering on the recommendations of the Hazelwood Mine
FireInquiry Report. Through ourinvolvement with the Latrobe
Health Assembly, we are supporting community actions

and working with service providers to tackle the social
determinants of healthinthe area.
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We launched our updated Action Agenda, which will give us
greater confidence to tackle health challenges and to further
build our distinctive capabilities as aleader in health promotion.

Aswe progress towards our goals, VicHealth will focus our
effortsonthreecriticalareas, where the underlying drivers
of health oftenintersect: gender, youth and community.

Ouractionsinclude:

» Gender: Working with key partnersinarange of settings,
most notably sportingassociations, toadvance gender
equality asadeterminant of health and wellbeing

* Youth: Working with young people and partner organisations
to build environments that support healthy young people
across the State

» Community: Working with Victorian communities (defined
by place or socialidentity), particularly those experiencing
disadvantage and exclusion, to promote the drivers of good
health and wellbeing.

Our updated Action Agenda hasaneven clearer direction for
each of our five strategicimperatives:

* Promote healthy eating: Inresponse to the community
supportforandsuggestions of the Citizens’ Jury on Obesity,
we are advocating and supporting evidence-based action
toimprove the eating habits of all Victorians. We will give
particularattention to highly processed foods and drinks
that add significantly to the burden of chronic disease by
seekingtoreduce salt consumption, working with industry
partnerstoreducesaltin processed food, and making water
the drink of choice in Victoria.

* Encourageregular physicalactivity: We are helping even
more Victorians make physicalactivity a routine part of
everyday life, particularly women and girls. We will also
continue toinvestinone of the most effective strategies
toincrease physicalactivity across the whole population:
makingit easier and safer to walk for short tripsand
active recreation.

* Preventtobaccouse: Weare continuing to support what we
know worksinreducingtherates of current smokersand
preventing uptake: motivatingand supporting smokers to
quit. We will further advocate for policies and practices that
help Victorialead the fight against tobacco in Australia and
internationally. We will try innovative approaches, in settings
and with groups where smoking remains all too common.

» Preventharm from alcohol: We are continuing to make the
case for controlmeasures on the price, availahility and
promotion of alcohol, based on evidence that this can reduce
community harm. Building on our world-first alcohol culture
change framework, we will work with partnerstotest new
ways of changing behaviour in specific high-risk settings
and groups.



» Improve mental wellbeing: We are implementing our Mental
Wellbeing Strategy by forging new partnerships with
sectors that can make a difference to the resilience and
social connection of young Victorians, such as sports, arts,
workplaces, education and government. We will work closely
withyoung people themselves to build the evidence for what
works, and we will work with partners to put the findings into
practice. We will deliverinnovative approachesin priority
settingstoincrease gender equality and build on our work on
preventing of violence against women.

Operational and budgetary performance

We achieved our statutory expenditure target of making
paymentsof not less than 30 per cent to sporting bodies (34
per centexpended) and not less than 30 per cent for health
promotionactivities (35 per cent expended).

The VicHealth Board set target ranges oninvestmentsaccording
toourfive strategicimperatives. Our largestinvestments were
made towards encouraging regular physicalactivity (achieved
at 34 per cent), followed by investments towards preventing
tobaccouse (achieved at 14 per cent). In addition, 15 per cent
was investedinresearch and evaluation.

VicHealth continued to provide funding through grants to
organisations to deliver projectsandinitiatives aligned to the
Action Agenda. Quit Victoriareceived the largest payment

of $4.7 million to continue the work towards getting more
Victorians smoke-free through the Quit program. This was
followed by ourinvestmentsintostate and regional sporting
organisations through the State and Regional Sports Programs,
respectively, with a total of $3.65 million. The Active Club
Grants program had the highest number of arganisations
receiving payments — 318 community sport and active
recreation clubs received $930,000 of funding toincrease
participationinsport.

Sixty-three per cent of our grant funding was allocated to
whole-of-population approaches to health promation. The
balance was allocated toanumber of other target populations:
Indigenous, women, children, those in low socioeconomic
status groups, youth and older people.

Community settings received 42 per cent of our investments.
This was followed by grants that focused on sports (37 per
cent), digital/online (11 per cent) and the education setting
(5 percent).

2016-17 was the fourth year of our Action Agenda. Throughout
theyear, we focused on achieving our arganisational goals

and applying our organisational model of Innovate-Inform-
Integrate. We continued to strengthen ourinternal processes,
particularlyin planningand delivering our work through the
VicHealth Project Management Framework, and evaluating it
through the Action Agenda Scorecard (see page 18).

Highlights of the year

Promoting healthy eating: more people choosing
water and healthy food options

Water initiative / H30 Challenge

VicHealth’s water initiativeisanintegrated program of work
with the goal of more Victorians choosing waterinstead of
drinks with added sugar. While 55% of Australians exceed
sugarintake guidelines, reducingintake of sugar-sweetened
beveragesandincreasingintake of water promotes a healthier
diet,improves health, prevents tooth decay and saves maney.

The H30 social marketing campaign encouraged Victorians
tomake asimple 30-day pledge toreplace every sugary drink
they would normally drink, with water.In 2017 we worked with
18 localcouncils to promote the challenge in their areaand
encourage residents to make the switch to water.

Partnership with Etihad stadium and sporting clubs

Free water refills are now available for footy fans and other
visitars at Etihad Stadium, with VicHealth settingup 10
fountains around the ground. The project provides a free and
healthy way for fans torehydrate on game days. Nearly 4800
litres of water was dispensed through the water fountainsin
2016. The projectisapartnership between VicHealth, Etihad
Stadiumand Yarra Valley Water. In 2016, AFL clubs Western
Bulldogs, Essendon, North Melbourne, Carlton and St Kilda
joined us tosupporttheinitiative.

Evaluation of trials to reduce consumption sugar-sweetened
beverages

VicHealthis callingon food retailers to reduce fatty, sugary and
salty foods and beverages for sale and increase the amount of
fresh, healthy and nutritious food available for consumersina
bid to tackle Australia’s obesity epidemic. A VicHealth-funded
evaluation of three healthy choices trials undertakenin the key
public settings of healthcare and spart and recreation facilities,
revealed that reducing the availability of unhealthy food and
drinks andincreasing the availability of healthy items has
apositive effect on people’s choices, with little to no effect
onrevenue.

Salt

Aquarter of Victorians don’t know that too much saltin
childhood can lead toalifetime of health risks. Many parents
alsodon’trealise that alot of the salt we consumeis hidden
inprocessed foods like pizzas, breakfast cereals, bread, and
packet soupsand sauces. The Salt Reduction Partnership Group
has continueditsinnovative approachinachievingcommitment
foractiononsalt reduction from governments, industry and
the public.
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As partof the partnership, VicHealth and the Heart Foundation
(Victoria) led a salt awareness campaign based on the idea that
youcan’ttrustyourtastebuds whenit comestoknowing how
much saltisin the food you buy.

Encouraging regular physical activity: more
people physically active, playing sport and
walking, with a focus on women and girls

Female participationin sport

Sportissport, regardless of who’s playingit. Sport should be
inclusive, equal, respected and encouraged at all levels for
ahealthier lifestyle. By creatingan even playing field for all
sports persons whether female or male, we can contribute to
afairer community. VicHealth’s #ChangeQurGame campaign
hasbrought together top athletes, teams and partners to
encourage Victorians to support gender equality in sport.

Aspartof ourworkto change attitudesin Victoria, we
announced $7 million of new funding over the next three years
for our Advancing Gender Equality in Sport for Women and Girls
program. Theinvestmentaimsto create new opportunities for
women’s participationin sport, increase the profile of women’s
sportandimprove attitudes towards gender equality in sport,
andimprove sport policy and practice to create welcomingand
inclusive environments for women and girls.

Walk to School

Victorian primary students who took partin Walk to School
thisyear have smashed previous records by walking 1.6 million
kilometres —the equivalent totwo returntrips tothe moon. A
record 758 schools took part with atotal of 144,928 students
participating, a significantincrease over 2015. Walk to School
month encourages primary school children to walk, ride or
scoot toor fromschool to kick-start healthy habits for life.

Innovation Challenge: Sport

We invited sportingand active recreation organisations to apply
forashare of $500,000 to test new ideas and get more people
moving toward better health and wellbeing. We challenged
themtolead sportinanewdirection, creating fun and flexible
sessions, finding more places to play and helping disadvantaged
Victorians getactive. We have given start-up funding to

five organisations to make theirideas become areality. The
ideas being piloted include a flexible form of cricket played

with teams of four, and a Tenpin bowling program that offers
discountsto people whowalk to the bowlingalley.
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Active Club Grants

VicHealth’s grants program for community clubs has been
supporting local sportsand active recreation clubsinremote,
rural, regionaland metropolitan areas to get more Victorians
living healthier and happier lives for nearly three decades. In
2016-17,the Active Club Grants provided funding toincrease
opportunities Victorians have to participate in community
clubs, prioritising female participation and social and modified
formsof sports. We awarded $930,000to 318 sportsand
recreation clubs across Victoria.

Active Arts and White Night

We have funded three new projects connecting councils

and the community to build physical activity, resilience and
social connectionand cohesion through active arts programs.
One of the councils will provide a range of activities for young
Sudanese people, Indian women and people with a disability
tobuild the capacity of participants to become

community leaders.

Forthe fourthyearinarow we supported White Night
Melbourne, as wellas participatingin the first White Night
Ballarat, giving Victorians a great chance to get moving and
have fun throughart. Our contribution at both events was Swing
City,a 12-hour dance marathon featuringalmostevery form of
socialdance, set tobighand music from the 30s, 40s and 50s.

Victoria Walks

Walkingis one of the mostaccessible forms of physical activity
and delivers significant physical and mental health benefits,
including helping to prevent chronic disease andincreasing
workplace productivity. We have committed to continue our
supportof Victoria Walks, toencourage more Victorians to walk
forrecreationandtransport. The funding will enable Victoria
Walks todeliverinnovative walking participation projects,
support Walk to Schooland work collaboratively with all levels
of governmenttoincrease walkingin Victoria.

Pride Game

VicHealth took astand against homophobia by supporting
theinaugural AFL Pride Game between Sydney Swansand the
StKilda Football Clubon 13 August 2016. The gameis about
celebratingdiversity and creating a safer, moreinclusive
environment for all playersand supporters. With research
showing 87% of young gay Australians who play sport feel the
need tohide their sexuality, and with the rate of attempted
suicide within the LGBTI community 14 times higher than that
forthe heterosexual population, the need forinitiatives like the
Pride Gameisclear.



Preventing tobacco use: more people smoke-free
and quitting

Quit Victoria

Overallin2015,11.9% of Victorians were daily smokers. This
representsasubstantial decline over the past decade, from
17.3% of Victorians who were daily smokers in 2004-05.
However, smoking remains alltoo commonin some settings
and groups.

Quit Victorialaunched anew campaignin April targeted at
young men, which urges smaokers to ditch cigarettes now
ratherthan put off quittinguntil they are older and starting to
feelthe damage to their health. The campaign came as Cancer
Council Victoriareleased data showing that more menin
Victoria were daily smokers (13.9%) than women (10.1%).

We congratulate Uruguay on a landmark legal win that means
graphic warnings will now cover 80% of cigarette packets, and
termsused on packets to falsely imply that some cigarettes
arelessharmfulthan others — suchas ‘light’ or ‘mild’ — will no
longer be allowed.

Preventing harm from alcohol: more people and
environments that support effective reduction
in harmful alcohol use

Alcohol Culture Change

Acrosstwo funding stages, VicHealth’s Alcohol Culture
Change Grants Initiative for Local Councils provides a pool of
$1.3 million to local councils to change risky drinking cultures
acrossanumber of sub-populationsincludingyoung people
disengaged from education, trade workforces and middle-
aged men. Eight local councils were given funding for stage
onetoscopeandplaninterventions. Of these, the four projects
demonstrating the most potential have been offered further
funding to deliver theirideas over the next two years. We look
forward toseeingtheimpact these grants willhave onthe
communities they target.

Research from La Trobe’s Centre for Alcohol Policy Research
(CAPR) together with VicHealth, has looked at alcohol cultures
inmiddle- and older-age groups, with a specific focus on
drinkingin licensed venues. The research showed this groupis
increasingly likely to drink at risky levels. A VicHealth funding
round offered $1.06 million to fund up to six projects delivering
solutionsto tackle risky drinking culturesinsportsbars, the
constructionindustry andregionaland rural settings.

Waterin licensed premises

Offering free waterin licensed premisesis recommended for
alcohalharmreduction butindividual venues can decide how
itissupplied.

VicHealth trialled anintervention thatincluded having an
attractive water dispenserand promoting the availability of
free water throughout a Melbourne bar. The research found that
very few patronsdrink waterifitis not promotedin some way.
Theinterventionsincreased water consumption, were well-
received by bar staffand had no negative effect on bar sales.

Improving mental wellbeing: more opportunities
to build community resilience and positive social
connections, with afocus on young people and
women

Preventing violence against women in Victoria

Attitudestowards gender equality are a key driver of violence
against women. They are also at the heart of the solution.
VicHealth’s world-first model for preventing violence
against women, Generating Equality and Respect (GEAR),
was recagnised with the prestigious national Excellencein
Evaluation Award, announced by the Australian Evaluation
Society (AES). GEAR provides accessible tools and resources
for local governments, workplaces and organisations to take
violence against women to the next level.

Innovation Challenge: Arts

In 2015, VicHealth funded two new projects for two years
tousetechnology toincrease physicalactivity and social
connection. Dance Break by No Lights, No Lycraisanapp that
getspeople active wherever they are by overriding your phone
withanenergisingdance track. Season 2 of The Cloud by Pop
up Playground ran from January to March 2017. It was an
immersive street game where players had to find passcodesin
therealworld tounlock documentsand videos hidden anline.

Creating healthy workplaces

A positive workplace can provide us with a positive sense of
community and connection with others, as wellas help to build
self-esteemandreduce symptoms of anxiety and depression.
VicHealth, SuperFriend and WorkSafe Victoria have been working
in collaboration since May 2016 to help workplaces create
positive and supportive cultures and environments that enable
workers tobe mare engaged, positive and effective at work.

Bright Futures

Almost 75 per cent of mentalillness commences before 25
yearsofagesoit’scrucial we take a preventative focus and
proactively work to build resilience and connectedness.
VicHealthis providing more than $400,000 in grants to support
theresilience, social connection and mental wellbeing of
Victorianyouth. Twelve new projects connecting councils,
community and young people have been funded through the
Bright Futures for Young Victorians Challenge.
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Knowledge and research

The VicHealth Innovation Research Grant calls for researchers
toundertake atwo-yearinnovative research project with the
potentialto generate large health gains. Five projects were

fundedin 2016 and each will receive $200,000 over two years.

We also opened NHMRC Partnership Project Grantand ARC
Linkage Project Grantroundsin 2016. Eleven applicants were
successfulin gaining support, in principle, from VicHealth. Each
project will receive $150,000 over three years from VicHealth,
pending final funding decisions from NHMRC and ARC.

Healthy Living apps

Forthe secondyearinarow, VicHealth commissioned
independentresearchersat Deakin University toreview over
300 healthand wellbeing apps to see which ones are most likely
to help Victoriansachieve their health goals. The user-friendly
guideratesapps that claim to promote healthy eatingand
physical activity, reduce harm from smoking and alcoholand
smoking,andimprove wellbeing. The page has been viewed tens
of thousands of times since its launch in September 2015, with
nearly 30,000 viewsinthe pastyearalone.

Indicators

We asked almost 23,000 Victorians about their health as part
of the VicHealth Indicators Survey —a Victorian community
wellbeing survey that focuses on the social determinants

of health. The surveyisbased on core questionsrelated to
individualand community health and wellbeing, critical to
inform decisions about public health priorities.

The survey complements the Victorian Government’s
Population Health Survey and when combined these datasets
give localgovernment planners a comprehensive picture

of health and wellbeingin Victoria. The initial findings were
releasedin November 2016 and we have now started on the
nextstep —drilling further down into the datato gaininsights
on specific sub-population groups.

Sustainable Development Partnership Grants

VicHealth’s Sustainable Development Partnership Grants aim
to foster collaboration between Victorian and international
partnerstoexplore how socialand environmentalissues such
asclimate change, ageing populations and the exponential
growth of technology will affect our health over the next two
decades. The funding, announced during the World Congress
on Public Health, provides an opportunity to facilitate
partnerships between leading global experts to tackle critical
public healthissues such as obesity, gender equality and
mental wellbeing.
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Health equity

Elevateisathree-yearinitiative that seeks to promote health
equity by enabling innovative thinkingand the design of new
solutions at community, inter-organisation, or population
levels. Elevate aims to transform the drivers of health inequity
by working with communities.

As part of Elevate, the VicHealth Community Challenge: Latrobe
Valley called on the community to share theirideas on how to
generate morejobsintheregion. ‘Transitioning the Valley’ was
named the winner of the inaugural Challenge in August 2016,
receiving a $20,000 boost from VicHealth. With significant
community support, this projectisajobsand collective impact
initiative that blends hard and softinfrastructure and new
energy technologies. Initiated by the community, it will work
with government, business and educational facilities to provide
apathway totransition local workersto future industries.

VicHealthisalso supporting the Latrobe Health Assembly’s
planning by mapping currentand recent health improvement
activity inthe Latrobe Health Zone. Thisinformation will help
identify potential projects that could be scaled up across
Latrobe City, andidentify gaps where projectsaren’t currently
beingdelivered.

Healthy communities

The Community Activation Program was a VicHealth initiative
thataimedtoassist less-active people to become more

active. We partnered with five Victorian councils to create and
‘activate’ under-used public spaces within local communities,
increasingaccesstoopportunities for physicalactivity and
social connection. We evaluated the program and found positive
shiftsinactivity levels for many participants.

VicHealthis continuing to fund two of the councils’ activations
for extended delivery. Golden Plains Shire Council created an
adventure park fromacarparkand grassed areatoengage
women and families, and Latrobe City Council transformed a
plazaandroad, using tables, seating, temporary landscaping
and anarea for physical activity to make a pedestarian-friendly
space forthe community to use.

Leading Thinker initiative

Aspartofourinaugural Leading Thinker residency we ran
Victaria’s first Citizen’s Jury on Obesity, where 100 jurors spent
sixweeks deliberating on the question: how can we make it
easier toeat better? InOctober, VicHealth and collaborator
Mosaic Labwon the IAP2 Core Values Award for Health for the
project. We were proud to win thisaward, which recognises
outstanding projectsand organisations thatareonthe
forefront of public participation.



Dr Klugman, one of our new Leading Thinkers, visited VicHealth
in May and presented at various eventsand forums. There was
alotofinterestinthe Leading Thinkersinitiative and we look
forward to sharingresults and learnings with our partners as
thetrialsinto de-biasingrecruitmentand women’s profile in
media progress.

These highlights are butasmall sample of the many initiatives
and projects on which VicHealth has worked in 2016-17. We
have collaborated with organisations across the State and the
knowledge we have generated has been extended through our
many partnersand their networks.

Iwould like to thank each and every member of the VicHealth
team for theirongoing enthusiasm and dedication to achieving
our goals. Their willingness to adapt and approach problems
innew ways allows us totread aninnovative path that
accelerates health outcomes for Victorians.

Thankyou, too, toall VicHealth’s partners and supporters
including our colleagues across the Victorian Government and
the local government, community and corporate partners with
whom we have worked to achieve our common goals.

Our Board has continued to provide me with expert leadership
and support.lacknowledge and thank our past Chair, Emeritus
Prof. John Catford, for his expertise and guidance during his
lasttwoyearsas Chairand twoyears as Deputy Chair. VicHealth
warmly welcomed Fiona McCormack as the new VicHealth Chair
inOctober 2016. We have already benefited from the direction
andinsight Fiona brings through her extensive expertisein
healthandillness prevention, and her many years leading
community change.

I particularly wish to thank the Victorian Minister for Health,
The Hon. JillHennessy MP, for her support and leadership. I also
thank the Minister for Mental Health, The Hon. Martin Foley
MP, the Minister for Sport, The Hon. John Eren MP, the Minister
for Women and Prevention of Family Violence, The Hon. Fiona
Richardson MP, and other Ministers and their Advisers for their
guidance and support.

Aswe celebrate our 30th anniversary and reflect on all that
VicHealth has achieved, lam excited about our future. VicHealth
hasalready truly established itself as a health promotion
foundation with aninternational reputation forinnovative,
evidence-based programs that positively impact the people of
Victoria. And with the immense skills of the VicHealth team and
our partners, we can go even further.

JerrilRechter
Chief Executive Officer
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VicHealth Action Agenda for
Health Promotion 2013-2023

VicHealth Action Agenda Scorecard

We use our Action Agenda Scorecard asasystemtotrack our progress towards achieving targets setinthe VicHealth Action Agenda
for Health Promotion, our 10-year vision for championing the health and wellbeing of all Victorians.

By 2023, one million more Victorians will experience better health and wellbeing.”

OUR10-YEAR GOALS
BY 2023:
200,000 300,000 200,000
more Victorians more Victorians engage more Victorians more Victorians more Victarians
adoptahealthierdiet inphysicalactivity tobacco-free drink lessalcohol resilientand
connected
OUR THREE-YEAR PRIORITIES
BY 2019, THERE WILL BE:
80,000 180,000 80,000
more people more people physically more people more people and more opportunities to build
choosingwaterand active, playing sportand smoke-free environments that community resilience and
healthy food options  walking, withafocuson and quitting supporteffective positive social connections,
women and girls reductionin harmful with a focus on young
alcoholuse people and women

RESULTS: We track our progress through the VicHealth Action Agenda for Health Promotion Scorecard
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Our focus

Aligned with the World Health Organization’s Ottawa Charter
for Health Promotion, VicHealth takes action at multiple levels:

Building healthy public policy inall sectorsand at all levels of

government

Creating supportive environments for health where people

live, work and play

Strengthening community action for socialand

environmental change

Developing personal skills that support people to exercise
greater controlover their own health

Rearienting services to promote better health

Our model
INNOVATE INFORM INTEGRATE
discovering how givingindividuals helping Victoria

toaccelerate
outcomes for

and organisationsthe lead health
bestinformationfor  promotion policy

health promotion healthier decisions and practice

Our actions

 Introducing cutting- » Providingtoolsandresources
edgeinterventions + Developingstrategic

Empowering through
digitaltechnologies .

Undertaking pioneering .
research

Leveraging cross-
sectoralknowledge

Utilising social marketing

Fostering public debate

partnerships
Advancing best practice
Supporting policy development

Strategicinvestments
and co-funding

 Building capacity inindividuals,

communities and organisations

Our difference

Weare proud of what setsus apart:

» Atrackrecordofdeliveringinnovation

* Anindependent, trusted and credible voice

* Investmentinresearchtodrive change

» Connectingwith people where they live, learn, work and play

» Focusedonthe positive state of health

Our origin

VicHealthis the world’s first health promotion foundation,
establishedin 1987 with funding from government-collected
tobaccotaxesand mandated to promote good healthin the state
of Victoria. VicHealth’s very inception was a pioneering act that
set the stage for our unique contribution to better health.

Our healthscape

Saocial, economic, environmental, technologicaland demographic
trendsaredriving an epidemic of non-communicable, chronic

disease globally.

TheVictorian Governmentis committed to addressing the social
determinants of health and their unequal distribution acrossthe

populationasevidenced by:

» The VictarianPublic Healthand Wellbeing Plan 2015-2019

» TheRoyal Commissioninto Family Violence

* TheHazelwood Mine Fire Inquiry — Health Improvement Report

VicHealth will prioritise action that advances womenand explores
new ways of working with communities to address disadvantage.
Our statusasaWorld Health Organization Collaborating Centre
for LeadershipinHealth Promotion enables us to share Victaoria’s
world-class health promotion nationally and internationally.

OUR COMMITMENTS: Fairness | Evidence-basedaction | Workingwith community | Partnershipsacrosssectors

*Atechnical paper describes the calculations underpinning the 10-year goalsand three-year priorities. As some individuals may achieve goals across more than one imperative, the

totalnumberineach 10-yeartarget exceeds one milliontoaccount for this.
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Operational and budgetary objectives
and performance against objectives

Budgetary performance

Under section 33 of the Tobacco Act 1987, the budget of VicHealth
mustinclude provision for paymentsto sporting bodies (not
lessthan 30 per cent) and to bodies for the purpose of health
promotion (not less than 30 per cent). The VicHealth Board
alsosetthe following parameters on grant expenditure for
the financialyear. These targetsare used to guide the level

of investmentin each strategicimperativeandinresearch

and evaluation.

Our performance against these targetsis summarisedin Table 1.

Table 1: Performance against statutory and Board policy expenditure targets®

Performance measures 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17
minimum actual amount
or target ($’000)

Statutory expenditure target®

Sporting bodies 30% 31% 34% 12,960

Health promation 30% 35% 35% 13,354

Board policy expenditure target

Promote healthy eating 5% 9% 8% 3,061

Encourage regular physicalactivity 21% 27% 34% 13,213

Preventtobaccouse 13% 14% 14% 5,238

Prevent harm from alcohol 5% 6% 5% 2,035

Improve mental wellbeing 8% 10% 11% 4,190

Research and evaluation®® 12% 15% 15% 5,843

Notes:

(i) Percentagefiguresare calculated asexpenditureasaproportion of our
budgeted governmentappropriation for the financial reporting period.
Forthe 2016-17 financialyear our appropriation was $37.4 million.
Figures exclude payments sourced from special funds unless
otherwiseindicated.

(ii) Spendagainststatutory expenditure targetsisnotexclusive of spend
against Board policy targets. Expenditure coded against the statutory
targetsisalsocodedagainstthe Board expenditure targets. Expenditure
on ‘health promotion’inthisinstanceis defined astotalgrant payments
lessgrant moniesissuedto sporting bodies.

(iii) Theresearchandevaluationfigure mayinclude expenditure allocated
tootherstatutoryandBoard expenditure categories.
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Our operating performance against budget is summarised
inTable 2.

Table 2: Operational performance against budget

Funding source 2016-17
budget
($’000)

Total funds

Totalrevenue 38,773 38,553

Totalexpenses 38,352 38,724

(T(;J;;lcgjtp))eratingsurplus/ a1 a71)

Appropriation funds

Revenue 38,542 38,475

Expenses 37,982 38,206

Special funding

Revenue 231 78

Expenses 370 518

Operating surplus/(deficit) (139) (440)

from special funding

VicHealth’s operations can be viewed as having two distinct
funding sources. VicHealth receives core funding via the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) to deliver
its’ objectives asoutlinedinthe TobaccoAct 1987.

Additionally, VicHealth periodically receives special funding
fromvarious government agencies to deliver specific programs.
Oftenthis fundingisreceived asalump sum, with expenditure
subsequently incurred over multiple years to deliver the
programs. This has the potentialto create eitheralarge
operating surplus or deficitin particular financialyears, as
therevenueisrecordedintheyearofreceiptand expenses
recarded when the expenditureisincurred, oftenin subsequent
years. Thisis the key reason for the budgeted $0.2 million
operating deficit from special funding this year.

Overall, the operating surplus for the year was $0.4 million,
being $0.6 million greater than the budget deficit of $0.2 million.

Totalrevenue was $0.2 million (1%) higher than budget due to
the receipt of special funding ($0.2 million) mainly for a number
of special projects. The appropriation from government of $38.3
million was consistent with the budget.

Total expenditure of $38.4 million was $0.4 million (1%) lower
than the budget. Wage and on-costs of $8.2 million were $1.1
million lower than budget due to staff vacancies and certain
positions placed on hold. Thisunderspend was used toincrease
our level of investment of health promotion programs and
campaigns to $26.6 million. Details of these major investments
arelistedin Table 3.

Granting of funds

Aspartofitscorebusiness, VicHealth has continued to provide
assistance toorganisations to deliver program outputs against
our strategic framework through the granting of funds for
health promotion and prevention purposes. Grant expenditure
include health promotion expenditure such as programs,
funding rounds, research grants, campaigns and directly
associated activities.
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Significant grant expenditure is defined as: » single projects where paymentstothe organisation total
« anygrant funding round where payments to successful $250,000 or more during the financial reporting period.
organisations total $250,000 or mare during the financial

reporting period Details of significant grant funding rounds are providedin Table 3.

Table 3: Grants with payments totalling $250,000 or more during the reporting period

Funding round No. of organisations Payments

receiving payments ($°000)
Active Club Grants 338 1,037,449
Alcohol Culture Change 17 1,346,253
Bright Futures Challenge 15 463,388
Change to Walking 1 250,000
Female Participationin Physical Activity 6 950,000
Gender Equality in Sport 21 1,901,927
Innovation Challenge: Physical Activity 24 870,500
Leading Thinkers 22 527,831
Local Government Active Arts Program 6 339,295
Physical Activity and Sport Evaluation 17 389,607
Quit Victoria 1 4,695,000
Regional Sport Program 9 1,500,000
Research Funding Rounds 6 1,108,000
Response to Royal Commissioninto Family Violence 38 311,857
Salt Reduction 3 1,001,612
State Sport Program 24 2,150,412
SunSmart 1 900,000
Vicsport Partnership 1 300,000
Victoria Walks 2 326,550
Walk to School 81 1,317,636
Water Initiative 51 869,753

Note:

(i) Evaluationandsupportrelatesto four fundingrounds: Female
ParticipationinPhysicalActivity, Innovation Challenge: Physical
Activity, Regional Sport Program and State Sport Program.
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Details of significant project payments toindividual organisations are provided in Table 4.

Table 4: Organisations receiving grant payments totalling $250,000 or more during the reporting period

Organisation name

Australian Football League
Victoria

Project name(s) Payments

($°000)

Increasing Female Participationin Sport Initiative: AFL Active; Physical Activity 488
Innovation Challenge: AFL Victoria Female Indigenous Program, AFL Blind & Saints

Play; State Sport Program; Gender Equality in Sport; AFL Etihad Stadium drinking

water fountain activation; AFL PhD Scholarship

Cancer Council of Victoria

Legal Capacity Support; Obesity Prevention Policy Coalition; Sunsmart; Quit 5,785

Victoria;

City of Melbourne

Fun Run; White Night Melbourne; Bright Futures Challenge: My Journey — 349
Empoweringyoung leaders; Alcohol Culture Change Initiative: What's your story?

—Scoping project of social harm due to alcohol use and misuse in our late night

environments

Deakin University

Creating healthy supermarket food environments; Retailer-led economic 757
interventions; STICKE Healthy Eating; Supermarket intervention; Transform-Us!

program in schools; Alcohol Culture Changein the University setting; Walk to

Schoolresearch and evaluation; Bright Futures Challenge evaluation; Healthy

eating policiesin public settings; Etihad Stadium water fountain activation and

use evaluation; Healthy Living Apps; SDG Partnership Grant; VicHealth Indicators
supplementreport

GippSport

Regional SportProgram 300

Gymnastics VictoriaInc.

Female Participationin SportInitiative: Move My Way; Physical Activity 252
Innovation Challenge: TeamGym; State Sport Program; #waterisbetter: Wateras
the drink of choice; Facilitation for Inclusion Sport Network

JeniKlugman

Leading Thinkers Residency 266

LaTrobe University

Centre for Alcohol Policy Research: Alcohol cultures and policy expertise 2016; 950
Alcoholculturesin middle and older age groups research; Alcohol Culture

Change Initiative Evaluation; Sports programs evaluation; Changing Our Game:

Advancing Gender Equality in Sport for Women and Girls evaluation preparation;

Gender Equality in Sport evaluation; Pride Game Evaluation; Gender, Alcohol

& Family Violence Symposium 2017; Evaluation of the VicHealth Innovation

Challenge: Sport; VicHealth Water Initiative Grants evaluation; Active Club Grants

evaluation; VicHealth Indicators supplementreport; Capacity Building Program

National Heart Foundation
of Australia (Vic)

Innovative approaches tosalt reduction: food industry and consumer 660
engagement; Salt Awareness Campaign

Netball Victoria

Female Participationinitiative: Rock Up Netball; State Sport Program 335

Surfing Victoria

Indigenous Surfing Program Integration; Female SUP Program: Coasting — Stand 280
Up Paddle Board for women

Tennis Australia

Female Participationin SportInitiative: Get Into Cardio Tennis 250
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The University
of Melbourne

Active Club Grants; Response to Royal Commission into Family Violence: evidence
review of gender equality and health in the Australian context; International

1,135

Network of Health Promotion Foundations; Young Workers Gamification Project;
VicHealth Indicators supplement reports and health planner digital engagement
tool; Women and Social Connection Formative research; Evaluation of the
Leading Thinkers Residency; Onemda VicHealth Koori Health Unit; The McCaughey
Centre; Maintaining tobacco abstinence among people leaving smoke-free
prisonsin Victoria; Promoting participationin sport for migrantand refugee
children and youth; Developing a LGBTI safe housing network

VicSport

VicSport partnership to build sector capacity within the Victorian sportand 306

recreation sector; 2016 Victorian Sport Awards

Victoria Walks Inc.

VictariaWalks; Behaviouralinsight trials 557

Target populations

Sixty-three per cent of our grant funding was targeted at
whole-of-population approachesto health promation. The
remaining 37 per cent was targeted at one or more of our
target populations, including women, children, Indigenous
and low socioeconomic groups as summarised in Graph 1.

Graph 1: Allocation of grant expenditure across target
population groups®

6%|4%|1%|14%

Children 6%

Indigenous 4%

Low SES 8%

Older people 1%
Whole-of-population 63%
Women 14%

Youth 4%

8%14%

Note:

(i) Percentagesareusedtoprovidearelativeindicatorofinvestmentacross
target populations. The percentagesare a proportion of grant payments
from appropriated revenue expended on each population group.
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Settings

The proportion of grant funding allocated within each setting
isprovidedin Graph 2. The largest settingis the community,
closely followed by sports whichreflects VicHealth’s statutary
obligation to provide grants to sporting bodies.

Graph 2: Allocation of grant expenditure across settings(

3%|11%

5% (1%

Arts/ culture 3%

Digital/ online 11%
Education 5%

General community 42%
Specific geographicarea 1%
Sports 37%

Workplace 1%

42%

Note:

(ii) Percentagesareusedtoprovidearelativeindicator ofinvestment
acrosssettings. The percentagesare aproportion of grant payments
from appropriated revenue expended within each setting.



Five-year financial summary

Table 5: Five-year financial summary

2017

($°000)

Operating Statement

Revenue from government 38,558 38,305 37,503 37,328 41,173
Otherincome 215 256 371 376 401
Totalincome 38,773 38,561 37,874 37,704 41,574
Grantandother expense transfers 27,535 26,451 29,915 28,055 30,500
E;’;ﬁlsoyeee"pensesa”dcjther 10,817 11,143 11,298 10,617 9,827
Totalexpenses 38,352 37,594 41,213 38,672 40,327
Net surplus/(deficit) for the period 421 967 (3,339) (968) 1,247
Balance Sheet

Totalassets 5,987 5,494 5,825 9,415 10,488
Totalliabilities 2,057 1,985 3,283 3,534 3,639
Totalequity 3,930 3,509 2,542 5,881 6,849
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Major changes affecting performance

QOverall, VicHealth generated an operating surplus of $0.4
million. The fact that special fundingis usually received in one
financial year, and then expended in subsequent financial years,
tendsto cause fluctuationsin VicHealth’s revenue, expenditure
and operating results which has occurredinrecentyearsasis
illustratedin Table 5.

The 2016-17 operating result from special purpose funding
has accounted fora $0.1 million operating deficit, whereas
an operating surplus of $0.6 million from appropriation funds
was generated.

Revenue of $38.8 million was $0.2 million higher than last year.
VicHealth is appreciative of the continued financial support
from the Victorian Government. The core funding received from
the Department of Health and Human Services under the Tobacco
Act 1987 was $38.3 million. The appropriation was higher than
the previous year after anindexationincrease of $0.7 million,
butrevenue was partially offset by a decline in special funding
by $0.5 million to $0.2 million.

Total expenditure for the year was $38.4 million being
$0.8 million (2%) higher than last year, which is reflective of
available funds due totheincrease in the health promotion
appropriation. Salaries and wages and other operating costs
($10.8 million) decreased asaresult of staff vacancies and
continuing strategies to mitigate cost escalations. These
savings were directed towards funding grants and direct
implementation costs, which combined with anincreasein
fundingavailable from the Government, resultedin our grant
expenditureincreasing by $1.1 million to $27.5 million.
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Significant changes in financial
position during the year

VicHealth’s assets are valued at nearly $6.0 million,
comprising mostly bank balances ($4.7 million) and
receivables ($0.8 million).

VicHealth maintains cash reservesat fiscally responsible levels,
consistent with parameters stipulatedin our cash reserves
policy. Cash balances have increased by $0.3 million, largely
asaresult of ouroverall operating surplus during the year.

Provision for employee benefitsis VicHealth’s largest liability
at $1.4 million, with grants payable and creditors amounting
t0 $0.7 million. Total liabilities of $2.0 million and these
categories of liabilities have remained consistent with
lastyear.

Asatbalance date, total equity increased to $3.9 million
asaresult of the $0.4 million operating surplus. Retained
earnings of $3.8 million are, in part, earmarked for allocation
forapotential future upgrade of our IT applications in addition
tomaintaining reserves to fund employee provisions and
other liabilities. The balance of retained earningsis monies
quarantined to deliver special funded projects.

Subsequent events

There were nosubsequent eventsoccurringafter balance
date which may significantly affect VicHealth’s operations
insubsequentreporting periods.



Section 2: VicHealth organisation structure

VicHealth organisation structure

VicHealth Board

Workforce and
Remuneration Committee

Expert panels, taskforces,
assessment panels

Finance Audit &
Risk Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Policy Development

Office Programs Group

The key function of each of the groups/officesis outlined
asfollows:

Policy Development Office

Drive VicHealth’s strategicimperatives and model, and ensure
the organisation’s policy, position statementsand programs
achieve world-class outcomes.

Programs Group

Designand execute program investment, grants, funding
rounds, research and partnership activities to maximise
outcomes from the Action Agenda for Health Promotion.

Marketing and Communications Group

Develop and deliver the organisational marketingand
communications strategies, including branding, social
marketing, campaigns, communications, publications and
events toenhance VicHealth’s unique brand and reputation.

Corporate Services Group

Provide the finance, business planning, information technology
and management, people and culture functions and manage the
governance framework to support the work of VicHealth.

Innovation Office

Lead anorganisation-wide innovation process for health
promotionandinternalbusiness operations, and the VicHealth
business model toinform, innovate andintegrate.

Marketing and
Communications Group

Corporate Services

Innovation Office
Group

Executive Management

The following people held executive management positions as
at 30 June 2017:

Chief Executive Officer
Ms JerrilRechter

Executive Lead, Policy Development Office (Acting)
Mr Greg Ford

Executive Manager, Marketing and Communications Group
Mr Stefan Grun

Executive Manager, Programs Group (Acting)
Ms Kellie Horton

Executive Manager, Corporate Services Group
Mr Dale Mitchell

Executive Lead, Innovation Office
Ms Nithya Solomon
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Employee Committees

VicHealth has a number of cross-organisationalemployee
committeesor groups toassist managementin operations:

* Diversity Committee

* Employee, Wellbeingand OHS Committee
» Enterprise Agreement Group

» Executive Team

* Incident Management Team

* Management Team.

In addition to these formal groups, there arearange of other
cross-functional groupsin operation.

VicHealth Board

The VicHealth Board members during the year were:

Ms Fiona McCormack — Member (1 July 2016 — 30 June 2017);
Chair (1 October 2016 - 30 June 2017)

Fionaisthe CEO of Domestic Violence Victoria, the peak body for
family violence services forwomen and childrenin Victoria.

Duringacareer spanning more than 20 years, Ms McCormack
hasworked at the forefront of community change in Victoria,
with a focus on changing systems toimprove outcomes for
waomen and children at risk of family violence and highlighting
theimpact of gender on population health outcomes.

Ms McCormack has provided advice to governments through
anumber of high profile advisory committees at a state and
national level.

Internationally recognised as an expertin her field, she has
presented at many high profile forums, including the Victorian
Royal Commissioninto Family Violence as wellas anumber of
Senate Committeesand United Nations forums.

With abackgroundinsocial sciences, Ms McCormack also

has extensive experience in community health — particularly
working with culturally and linguistically diverse communities
—aswellaseducation, trainingand policy development.

Fionatook uptherole of Chair of the VicHealth Board from
Professor John Catfordon 1 October 2016.

Emeritus Prof John Catford — Chair (1 July 2016 -
30 September 2016)

Professor Catfordis Executive Director, Academic and Medical,
at Epworth HealthCare. He was previously Deputy Vice-
Chancellor, Vice-President and Dean (Faculty of Health, Medicine,
Nursingand Behavioural Sciences) at Deakin University.
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Having trained as a pediatrician and public health physician,
he was Chief Health Officer and Executive Director of Public
Health for the Victorian Government from 1998 t0 2002. In
1994 t01995, he worked for the World Health Organization as
Health Policy and Public Health Adviser to health ministersin
Centraland Eastern Europe. Professor Catfordis Chair of the
Editorial Board of the journal Health Promotion International
published by Oxford University Press, which he helped establish
in 1986 and was Editor-in-Chief until 2013. He has published
widely with more than 300 publications, and was co-author
of the WHQ’s Ottawa Charter for Health Promotionin 1986,
the Bangkok Charter for Health Promotionin a Globalized
World in 2005, and the Nairobi Call to Action for Closing the
Implementation Gapin Health Promotionin 2009.

Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM - Deputy Chair

Ms Livingstoneis currently ahostand swimming broadcaster
on Network Ten Australiaand ONE HD. Sheisa formerelite
athletewhohasastrongbackgroundin sport, community,
communications and media. She chaired the Ministerial
Community Advisory Committee on Body Image.

Sheis Vice-President of the Victorian Olympic Council,a member
of the Executive of the Australian Olympic Committee and a
Director of Swimming Australia.

Ms Livingstone has previously worked with VicHealth and
VicHealth’s funded projects including Quit Victoria and Victoria
Walks where she has demonstrated a good knowledge of
health promotion.

Ms Susan Crow

Ms Crow is currently employed as the Head of Community,
Melbourne City Football Club where sheisresponsible for
the development and delivery of Melbourne City’s Social
Responsibility program.

She has 20 years’ experience in sportsadministration
roles, as the Chief Executive Officer of Netball Victoriaand
Softball Australia and the Executive Director, Women’s
Cricket Australia.

Dr Sally Fawkes (1 October 2016 - 30 June 2017)

Dr Sally Fawkesisasenioracademicat La Trobe University
where she coordinates health professional doctorates and
post-graduate health promotion studies. Sheis an academic
advisor to the Australian Futures Project hosted by La Trobe,
amulti-sector, non-profitinitiative striving to make ‘long-
termism’ easier. She holds a Bachelor of Science, Master of
Business Administration and a PhD in Health Policy. Dr Fawkes
isatechnicaladvisor for the World Health Organization and has
beenonthe faculty of the WHO health leadership development
program, ProLEAD since 2004.



Sheisservingathirdtermasanelected member of the
Governance Board of the WHO-affiliated International Network
of Health Promoting Hospitals and Health Services, and was
instrumentalin establishing the Victorian chapter, now a
nationalnetwork.

Dr Fawkes’ research, teaching and professional work
emphasises the application of foresight, systems thinking and
health promationin public sector governance, strategy and
administration. Active fields of interest include leadership and
foresight practice toimprove health in Asia and the Pacific,
health literacy and urban health in the context of the UN
Sustainable Development Goals. Sheisaregular reviewer for
nationalandinternationaljournals, andis editorial advisor to
Citiesand Health. Dr Fawkes has previously worked for the WHO
Regional Office for Europe, Victorian Healthcare Association, and
severaluniversities and teaching hospitals. She has held Board
appointments with Women’s Health Victoriaand community
health services.

Mr Nick Green 0AM

Mr Greenisan experienced leader who has waorked in senior
rolesacross numerous areasincluding elite high performance
sport, governance, finance and government relations. He is
currently Chief Executive Officer of Cycling Australia, previously
spending sixyearsatthe Victorian Major Events Company,
including Group Manager of Acquisition and Development. He
hasbeenamember of the Commonwealth Games Australia
Board of Management since 2016.

Mr Green has served as President of the Victorian Olympic
Council (2005-2016), an Executive Board Member of the
Australian Olympic Committee (2005-2017), and a Fellow
and Director of Leadership Victoria (2014-2016).

Mr Green has attended eight Olympic Gamesand was the
Chefde Mission for the 2012 Australian Olympic Team. He
was awarded the Order of Australia Medaland inducted into
the Sport Australia Hall of Fame in recognition of his sporting
achievements, startingas aworld rowing champion and
subsequently as broadcaster and team manager.

Professor Margaret Hamilton AO

Professor Hamilton has over 45 years’ experience in the public
health field, specialisinginalcoholand drugsincluding clinical
work, educationand research. She hasabackgroundinsocial
work and public health and was the Founding Director of Turning
Point Alcoholand Drug Centrein Victoria and Chair of the
Multiple and Complex Needs Panelin Victoria.

She served as an Executive Member of the Australian National
Councilon Drugs and on the Prime Minister’s Councilon
Homelessness. Sheisamember of Cancer Council Victoria
andretiredas Presidentin 2015.

Professor Hamilton contributes to many other advisory
groups inthe areas of childrenin out-of-home care, youth
drug problems, alcoholand drug policy and research. She was
appointed tothe Civil Society Task Force planning for the Special
Session of the United Nations’ General Assembly meeting on
drugsin 2016, anditsreviewin 2019.

Professor Hamilton holds an honorary position at the University
of Melbourneandisretired butremains active.

Mr Ben Hartung (1 October 2016 - 30 June 2017)

MrHartungis currently the General Manager of Hockey
Operationsat Hockey Australia.

MrHartunghas served onthe Board of Vicsport since November
2012.He wasthe CEO of Hockey Victoria from 2008 to 2014,
and prior to this was the Event Manager at the Australian Grand
Prix Corporation. Hismore than 20 years’ experience in sports
administration and teachingalsoincludesroles asa physical
educationand psychology teacherin secondary schools.

Thriving on continual education, Mr Hartung has completed
aBachelor of Arts, Graduate Diplomain Education, Graduate
Diplomain Sports Science, Master of Sport Management and
aGraduate Diplomain Sports Law. Heis currently completing
aPerformance Leaders Program at the Australian Institute
of Sport.

Hockey has beenalife-long passion for Mr Hartung and he has
beeninvolved asaplayerand coach for over 35 years.

MrHartungis committed to creating healthy, safe, welcoming
andinclusive sportingand recreational environments for all.

Ms Veronica Pardo

Ms Pardoisthe Executive Director of Arts Access Victoria,

the state’s leadingarts and disability organisation. In this
role, she has led an ambitious agenda of social and artistic
transformation for people with adisability and the communities
in which they live. With a passion for social justice and equity,
she has spearheaded campaignsrelating to the inclusion of
people with adisability inartsand culture, as audiences and
culturalinnovators.

Ms Pardo hasasuccessful history of employment at senior
levelsinthe not-for-profit sector, with a major focus on
policy and advocacy. Shehasalongtrackrecord of leading
research programsaimed at addressing barriers to
participation. Alinguist by training, she has specialised

in Australia Sign Language (Auslan), where she holds two
postgraduate qualifications.
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Mr Simon Ruth

MrRuthis CEO of the Victorian AIDS Council. He has more than
20yearsof experiencein the fields of AIDS and HIV awareness,
advocacy and treatment, alcohol, drug treatment and
Indigenous services, youth workand community development.

Mr Stephen Walter

Mr Walteris asenior corporate affairs professional with over
35years’experience in corporate communications, stakeholder
relations, marketingand business development gained through
the publicand private sectors. Heis currently principaland
owner of Persuade Cansulting. Previous to this, he was Chief of
Staff and Head of Corporate Affairs at Australia Post where he
was amember of the Executive Committee for a decade.

Mr Walter formerly held Board memberships at the Australian

Association of National Advertisersand RMIT Alumni Association.

His community contributionsinclude pro-bono work for Cottage
by the Sea, acharity supporting disadvantaged children, and
advisory servicesto Opera Australia.

The Members of Parliament appointed to the Board are:
Ms Colleen Hartland, MLC

Ms Hartland has been the Greens MP for the Western Suburbs
of Melbourne and the Victorian Greens Spokesperson for Health
since 2006.

Ms Hartland wasraised in Morwelland has lived in Footscray

for many years. She was a founding member of the Hazardous
Materials Action Group (HAZMAG), campaigning for protection
forresidents fromindustrial hazardsinthe western suburbs,

including the Coode Island explosion.

Amongst hervariedjob history, Ms Hartland worked at the
Western Region Health Centre for five years, supporting older
residentsinthe Williamstown high rise housing estate. She was
a City of Maribyrnong Councillor between 2003 and 2005. She is
passionate about addressing the social determinants of health.
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The Hon. Wendy Lovell, MLC

Ms Lovell hasrepresented the Northern Victoria Region as
alLiberal Party memberinthe Victorian Legislative Council
since 2002 and served as Minister for Housing and Minister
for Children and Early Childhood Development from 2010
until 2014.

Through herroleasaregional Member of Parliament and her
former Ministerial responsibilities, Ms Lavell has developed
astronginterestin maternaland child health and health
outcomesinruralandregional communities.

Prior toentering Parliament, Ms Lovell enjoyed a careerin small
businessasanewsagentandiswell known for her commitment
tocommunity service and as astrongadvocate for her region.

Ms Natalie Suleyman MP

Ms Suleyman is the State Member for St Albans. In April 2015,
she was appointed amember of the Parliamentary Committee
for Law Reform, Road and Community Safetyandalsoasa
Member of Parliament’s House Committee. Natalieis Secretary
of the Victorian Parliamentary Friendship Groups for Turkey,
LebanonandIndia.

Previously, Ms Suleyman served as alocal councillor at the
Brimbank City Council, including three terms as Mayor. She
was awarded the Certificate of Outstanding Service — Mayor
Emeritus by the MAV and received the Victorian Multicultural
Award for Excellence - Local Government.

Ms Suleymanis pleased to be working with her community
onthe new $200 million Joan Kirner Women’s and Children’s
Hospital projectin Sunshine, a significant redevelopment of
health servicesin Melbourne’s West.



Table 6: Board Attendance Register

attendedin 2016-17 016
Emeritus Prof John Catford, Chair (1 July 2016 — 30 September 2016) 2 2
Ms Susan Crow 6 6
DrSally Fawkes 2 4
Mr Nick Green 0AM 5 6
Prof Margaret Hamilton AO 6 6
Ms Colleen Hartland MLC 5 6
Mr Ben Hartung 3 4
Ms Nicole Livingstone OAM, Deputy Chair 4 6
The Hon. Wendy Lovell MLC 4 6
Ms FionaMcCormack, Member (1 July 2016-30 June 2017); 5 5
Chair (1 October 2016 — 30 June 2017)
Ms Veroncia Pardo 5 6
Ms Sarah Ralph 0 1
Mr Simon Ruth 4 6
Ms Natalie Suleyman MP 2 6
Mr Stephen Walter 4 6

Report of Operations

31



Finance, Audit and Risk Committee

The purpose of the committeeis to assist the Board in fulfilling
its governance duties by ensuring that effective financial
management, auditing, risk managementandreporting
processes (both financialand non-financial) are in place to
moanitor compliance with allrelevant laws and regulations
and best practice.

During thereporting period, the Committee members were:

Independant Members

Ms Sally Freeman 1July — 30 October 2016 (Chair)
e s ooy Can
Ms Joanne Booth 1December 2016 — 30 June 2017
Ms Kylie Maher 1July 2016 — 5 April 2017
Mr Adam Todhunter 1July 2016 - 30June 2017

Board Members

Mr Nick Green 0AM 1July 2016 - 30June 2017
Ms Colleen Hartland MLC 16 November 2016 — 30 June 2017
Ms Sarah Ralph 1 July — 29 November 2016
Mr Simon Ruth 16 November 2016 — 30 June 2017

Table 7: Finance, Audit and Risk Committee attendance register

Finance, Audit and Risk Committee No. of meetings gible meeting
attendedin 2016-17 016

Ms Joanne Booth 2 2
Ms Sally Freeman 2 2
Mr Nick Green 0AM 3 4
Ms Colleen Hartland MLC 2 2
Ms Kylie Maher 2 3
Mr Peter Moloney 4 4
Ms Sarah Ralph 0] 1
Mr Simon Ruth 1 2
Mr Adam Todhunter 3 4
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Workforce and Remuneration Committee

The purpose of the committeeis to provide strategic advice
onworkforce strategy and planning, remuneration, human
resources policiesand alignment of VicHealth’s policies with
relevantindustrialrelationsand employment legislation and
Victorian government policies. Additionally the committee
reviews the CEQ’s performance and remuneration.

Duringthe reporting period, the following Board members were members of the committee:

Board Members

Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM 1 July 2016 — 30 June 2017 (Chair)
Emeritus Prof John Catford 1 July — 30 September 2016
Ms Fiona McCormack 10ctober 2016 — 30 June 2017
Ms Veronica Pardo 1July 2016 - 30 June 2017
Mr Stephen Walter 1July 2016 - 30June 2017

Table 8: Workforce and Remuneration Committee attendance register

Workforce and Remuneration Committee No. of meetings gible meeting
attendedin 2016-17 016

Emeritus Prof John Catford 1 1
Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM 2 3
Ms Fiona McCormack 2 2
Ms Veronica Pardo 3 3
Mr Stephen Walter 3 3
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Advisory Governance Framework

The VicHealth Advisory Governance Framework outlines
VicHealth’s decision-making processes with regard to the
provision of programs, research and grants. The principles
provide VicHealth, stakeholders and the community with
confidence that the processes are efficient, financially
responsible and are meeting the objectives, policies and
strategic plans of VicHealth.

The Advisory Governance Framework comprises three distinct
groups, which make recommendations to the VicHealth CEO.
These groups are established asrequired to examine specific
health promotionand preventionissues. These are:

» Expertpanels: toexamine key strategic matters thataffect
the pillars of the Action Agenda for Health Promotion

» Taskforces:toinvestigate and provide operationaland
implementation advice on key strategic priorities and high-
profile community healthissues

» Assessment panels: todetermine funding recommendations
and/or review major funding/grant, and/or
procurement proposals.
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During 2016-17 the following groups were formed:

Expert panels

None

Taskforces

Alcohol

Leading Thinkers

Youth

Mental Wellbeing

Healthy Eating

Physical Activity

Salt Reduction Strategic Partnership

Assessment Panels

Bright Futures

Active Club grants

Water Grants Initiative

Innovation Challenge — Sport

Regional Sport Program — Reserve Funding

Changing our Game

Inadditionto these taskforces and panels, VicHealth consulted
with arange of other health expertsand stakeholders on specific
health promotionand prevention topics and projects.

Patron-in-Chief

VicHealthis pleased and honoured to have asits Patron-in-Chief,
The Honourable Linda Dessau AC, Governor of Victoria.



Section 3: Workforce data

Occupational Health and Safety
(OHS) management

VicHealth’s Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) policy
demonstrates our commitmenttothe provision of a safe and
healthy workplace.

VicHealthis committed to fosteringand enshrininga culture
within the organisation that values theimportance of a healthy
and safe work environment.

Tofurtherthese aims, VicHealth has an established Employee
Wellbeingand OH&S Committee. This comprises staff from
acrosstheorganisationtoactasanemployee consultation
group by undertaking the following tasks and functions:

« provideanavenue foremployee consultation relating to
wellbeingand OH&S

» promote employee wellbeingand OH&S

« deliveremployee health and wellbeing activities/topics.

Our performance against key OHS indicators during the 2016-17

financialyearis summarisedin Table 9.

Table 9: Performance against OHS management measures

Measure Indicator 2016-17 Bw{kEEal
Incidents No.of incidents 0 1
No. of hazards 5 0
reported
No.
o.ofstandard 0 0
claims
Claims No..oflosttlme 0 0
claims
No. of claims 0 0
exceeding 13 weeks
Claim Average cost per
costs standard claim® 50 $0
Note:

(i) Averagecostperclaimincludes medicalexpensesonly and does not
include salary or wages.

Equity and diversity principles

Our equity and diversity policy demonstrates our commitment
tocreatingand maintaining a positive working environment
free of discrimination and harassment, which provides equal
opportunities foralland values diversity.

In further support of this, VicHealth has established a Diversity
Committee comprising employee representatives fromall
groups of the organisation.

As part of our diversity commitment, key activities commenced
during the yearinclude:

» development ofadiversity action plan (in concert with the

Disability Action Plan and Reconciliation Action Plan review)

» updatingour Diversity and Inclusion Policy

» participationinthe People Matter Survey (Diversity and

Inclusion module)

» undertaking gender pay audit

* beingamember of the Office of Preventionand Women’s

Equality’s Gender Auditing Working Group.

VicHealth Disability Action Plan

VicHealth’s Disability Action Plan (DAP) outlines arange of
actionstobe progressivelyimplemented over athree year
period. These actionsinclude improving accessibility and
remaving barriers for people with disabilities so that they
aretreatedequally. Initiatives include office modifications,
website accessibility audit, improved employment policies and
opportunities as wellas staffawareness training.

VicHealthis pleased toreportthatithasimplemented most of
theseinitiatives. As VicHealth’s DAP has nominally expired, work

hascommenced torenew our DAP for the next threeyears. Itis

anticipated that the updated DAP will be completedin late 2017.

VicHealth Reconciliation Action Plan

VicHealth has astrong history of working collaboratively
with Aboriginaland Torres Strait Islander communities to

meet locally identified needsin culturally appropriate ways.

VicHealth’s first Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP), released

in2013,isone ofanumber of mechanismsthat VicHealth
hasimplemented toensure that we are supporting best
practicein Aboriginal health promotion, both with our partner
organisations and within our own organisation.

The RAP outlines practicalactions VicHealth has undertaken
tobuild astrongerrelationshipand enhancerespect with
Aboriginaland Torres StraitIslander peoples, including culture
awareness sessions for employees, developing Indigenous

language protocols and an Indigenous governance framework,

and encouraging staff to participate in National Reconciliation
and NAIDOC weeks. Similar to the DAP, the RAP has nominally

expired,and work has commenced on updating our RAP for the
nextthreeyears.
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Public administration values and
employment principles

VicHealth continues toimplement the directions of the
Commissioner for Public Employment with respect to upholding
public sector conduct, managing and valuing diversity, managing
underperformance, reviewing personal grievances and selecting
on merit.

VicHealth regularly reviews its suite of detailed employment
policies, including policies with respect to grievance resolution,
recruitment, performance management, learning and
development, managing conflicts of interest and gifts benefits
and hospitality.

Insupport ofthe above, VicHealth developed a staff driven
Employee Culture Charter. The Charter outlines four principles
that set the culturaland professional standards to which we all
commitand expect other employeestodemonstrate. The four
principlesare Trust, Challenge, Accountability and Results. At
theendoftheyear, a peer-basedrecognitionisawarded to staff
members who best demonstrate these principles.

VicHealth workplace

Annually, VicHealth staff participatein the Victorian Public
Sector Commission’s (VPSC) People Matter Survey. VicHealth
iscommitted to beingan employer of choice and the 2017 survey
illustrates this commitment with the majority of results either
exceedingor being consistent with the Victorian Public
Sectoraverage.

Graph 3: Results from the People Matter survey
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VicHealthis committed to continuous improvementand
will develop anaction planin consultation with employees
toaddressareaswhere the survey results were lower
thandesired.

VicHealth, in consultation with employees, is reviewing and
updatingits Workplace Flexibility Policy and practices to
ensureitaligns with the VPSC’s Mainstreaming Flexibility Across
the VPSand that our existing practices continue to model
better practice.

VicHealthis proud of its commitment to offeringemployees
workplace flexibility with arange of options available. Thisis
illustrated with over one-third of employees working part-time,
anincrease of 20% over the past three years.

One of the challenges for allemployersis mental wellbeing
of itsemployees. VicHealth’s Mental Health and Wellbeing
Policy outlinesarange of work practices and initiatives to
promote mental wellbeing and provide support services
toemployees. During the year, VicHealth implemented the
SuperFit Mates Program.

SuperFit Matesis a peer mentoring program that supports
employees who may be experiencing mental healthillness
orissues.ASuperFit Mateis someone with whom employees
cantalkthroughissues (both personaland work-related issues)
toassistthemin moving through some difficult times to get
toabetterplace.

This program complementsarange of other practices
that VicHealth has to encourage and support positive
mental wellbeing.

Inlate 2016, VicHealth commenced negotiations with the union
andemployeerepresentatives foranew Enterprise Agreement
astheexisting Agreement was due to nominally expire in May
2017.Negotiationsare well progressed and VicHealth anticipates
thatin-principle agreement will be reached inearly 2017-18.



Workforce data

Table 10: Workforce data

June 2017

Allemployees Ongoing Fixed term & casual

Number (HC) FTE Full-time (HC)  Part-time (HC) FTE Full-time (HC) FTE
Gender
Male 19 18.7 16 1 16.8 2 1.9
Female 60 51.5 31 19 43.8 10 7.7
Age
15-24 3 2.4 1 0 1 2 1.4
25-34 21 19.8 15 3 17 3 2.8
35-44 30 26.4 17 9 22.8 4 3.6
45-54 16 14.3 10 4 12.8 2 1.5
55-64 9 7.3 4 4 7 1 0.3
65+ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
VicHealth EA
GradeA 4 3.2 1 2 2.6 1 0.6
GradeB 1 0.8 0 0 0 1 0.8
GradeC 16 15.2 10 3 12.4 3 2.8
GradeD 36 31.3 23 9 28.8 4 2.5
GradeE 17 14.7 8 6 11.8 3 2.9
GradeF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TotalVicHealth EA 74 65.2 42 20 55.6 12
(A—F Grade) 9.6
Senior employees
Executives® 5 5 5 0 5 0 0
e s s s o s 0
Total other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totalemployees 79 70.2 47 20 60.6 12 9.6
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Table 10: Workforce data — continued

June 2016

Allemployees Ongoing Fixed term & casual

Number (HC) FTE Full-time (HC) Part-time (HC) FTE Full-time (HC) FTE
Gender
Male 20 19.4 17 2 18.4 1 1
Female 59 53.8 36 11 44.1 12 9.7
Age
15-24 1 1 0 0 0 1 1
25-34 25 24.8 21 1 21.8 3 3
35-44 33 30.1 21 7 25.9 5 4.2
45-54 14 11.9 7 3 9.4 4 2.5
55-64 6 5.4 4 2 5.4 0 0
65+ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
VicHealth EA
GradeA 4 3.6 2 1 2.8 1 0.8
GradeB 1 1 0 0 0 1 1
GradeC 15 14 10 4 13 1 1
GradeD 35 31.9 23 4 25.6 8 6.3
GradeE 18 16.7 12 4 151 2 1.6
GradeF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total VicHealth EA 73 67.2 47 13 56.5 13 10.7
(A—F Grade)
Senior employees
Executives® 6 6 6 0 6 0 0
e S
Total other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totalemployees 79 73.2 53 13 62.5 13 10.7

Notes: ‘FTE’ means full-time staff equivalent.

(i) ExecutivesincludestheAccountable Officer (CEO).
Allworkforce datafiguresreflectactive employeesin the last full pay period

of June of eachyear.

‘Ongoingemployees’ means people engagedinanopen-ended contract of
employment and executives engaged on a standard executive contract who
were activeinthe last full pay period of June.
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‘HC’ means headcount.

Theheadcounts exclude those personson leave without pay or absent
onsecondment, externalcontractors or consultants, temporary staff
employed by employment agencies, and asmallnumber of people who are
notemployees butappointeestoastatutory office, as definedin the Public
Administration Act 2004 (e.g. persons appointed toa non-executive Board
member role, to an office of Commissioner, or to ajudicial office).



Executive Officer data

Anexecutive officer is defined asa person employed as a public
service body head or other executive under Part 3, Division 5 of
the Public Administration Act 2004. All figures reflect employment
levels atthelast full pay periodin June of the currentand
corresponding previous reporting year..

Table 11: Breakdown of Executive Officers

The following table outlines the number of executives
(including the Accountable Officer) employed in the last pay
periodinJune. The table doesnotinclude employeesinacting
executive arrangements.

June 2016

Male Female Vacancies Male Female Vacancies
CEO 0 1 0 0 0
. . 0 1 o o
Executive Leads 0 2 0 0 0
Total 2 13 1 2 0

Table 12: Reconciliation of executive numbers

PIEaVAl 2015-16

Executives with remuneration

over $100,000 4 >
Add Vacancies (Table 11) 1 0

Executives employed with total 0 0

remuneration below $100,000

Accountable Officer (CEO) 1 1
Less Separations 1 0
Total executive numbers at 30 June 5 6

(Financial Statements Note 15)

Asummary of executive remunerationis contained in the
Financial Statements (Notes 14 and 15).
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Section 4: Other disclosures

Consultancies
Table 13: Details of consultancies over $10,000 (excluding GST)

Consultant Purpose of consultancy @ Total 2016-17 Future
approved actual ECILLNTT:

UL  expenditure ($°000) @

Corvus Group Human resource consulting services 26 26 0
Data#3 Limited Systems consulting services 39 39 0
Davidson Consulting Human resource consulting services 18 18 0

. Busi h
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu usmes.sand u.man resource 31 31 0
consulting services

Fenton Communications Business consulting services 25 25 0
Glocal Health Consultants Business consulting services 10 10 0
Jo Fisher Executive Pty Ltd Recruitmentservices 21 21 0
Linus Consulting Business consulting services 20 20 0
LR Associates Business consulting services 142 142 0
Maddocks Lawyers Legalservices 64 64 0
Pitcher Partners Internationalaudit services 85 85 0

Victorian Government Solicitors

Office Legalservices 18 18 0

Consultantsdisclosed inthis table exclude consultantsengaged  Details of consultancies under $10,000

under aVicHealth grant or funding agreement. In2016-17, there were 18 consultancies where the total fees

Note: payable to the consultants were less than $10,000. The total
(i) Consultancy agreements cover the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. expenditureincurred during the financialyearinrelation to these

(ii) Unlessotherwiseindicated thereisnoongoing contractual commitment consultanciesis $67,000 (excl. GST).
tothese consultants. These consultants may be engaged beyond June
2017 asrequired.
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Information, communication and
technology (ICT) expenditure

Table 14: ICT expenditure during 2016-17 (excluding GST)

Business as Usual Non-Business as Usual Non-Business Operational

ICT expenditure ICT expenditure expenditure

Total
($°000)

1,109

Total=A+B A
($°000) ($°000)

463 463

Non-Business as Usual
Capital expenditure
B

($°000)

Advertising expenditure

VicHealth delivered the following campaignsin the last financial
year, for which the media expenditure was greater than $100,000:

Table 15: Advertising expenditure during 2016-17 (excluding GST)

Name of
campaign

Change our
Game

Campaign summary Start/end Advertising Creativeand Researchand

date (media)  campaign

($°000) development
($°000)

Print, online and social Feb2017 - 188 209
campaigntoincreasethe June2017

profile of women’s sport

andimprove attitudes

towards gender equality in

sportforwomenand girls.

evaluation
expenditure
($°000)

186

Printand Other
collateral campaign
expenditure expenditure
($°000) ($°000)

0 100
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Compliance with the Building Act 1993

VicHealth does notown or controlany government buildings and
consequently isexempt from notifyingits compliance with the
buildingand maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.

Freedom of Information

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 allows the publicaright
of accesstodocuments held by VicHealth. Information

is available under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 by
contacting the following person:

Chief Finance and Accounting Officer
Victorian Health Promotion Foundation
15-31 Pelham Street

CarltonVIC 3053

Phone: (03)9667 1333

Fax:(03)9667 1375

VicHealth did notreceive any FOl applications for the 12 months
ending 30 June 2017.

Compliance with the Protected
Disclosure Act 2012

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (replacing the repealed
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001) encourages and assists
peaplein makingdisclosures of improper conduct by public
officersand public bodies. The Act provides protection to people
who make disclosuresinaccordance with the Act and establishes
asystemforthe mattersdisclosedtobeinvestigated and
rectifyingaction to be taken.

VicHealth has structuresin place totake allreasonable
stepstoprotect people who make such disclosures fromany
detrimentalactioninreprisal for making the disclosure. It will
also afford naturaljustice to the person whois the subject of
thedisclosure tothe extentitislegally possible.

No disclosures were made within the financial reporting period.

Victorian Health Promotion Foundation Annual Financial Report 2016-17

Compliance with DataVic Access Policy

Consistent with the DataVic Access Policy issued by the
Victorian Government, the informationincluded in this Annual
Report willbe available at http://www.data.vic.gov.au/auin
machine-readable format. VicHealth will progressively release
otherdatainthe futureasitbecomesavailable.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy

VicHealth abides by the requirements of the Victorian Industry
Participation Policy (VIPP) withinits procurement practices.
VIPP requirements must be applied to tenders of $3 million or
more in metropolitan Victoriaand $1 million or morein rural
Victoria.

During the financialreporting period, no tenders or contracts
fellwithinthe scope of application of the VIPP.

National Competition Policy

Duringthisreporting period VicHealth did not undertake
any activities required reporting against the National
Competition Policy.

Office-based environmental impacts

Over the pastthreeyears, VicHealth hasreduced its electricity
consumptionby 13% from 151,000 to 133,000 kilo watt
hours. VicHealth continues to operate inan environmentally
sustainable mannerand hasrecently procured more energy
efficient printers and equipment.

Additional information available
onrequest

Incompliance with the requirements of the Standing Directions
of the Minister for Finance, additionalinformation has been
retained by VicHealth andis available to the relevant Ministers,
Members of Parliament and the public on request (subject to
the Freedom of Information requirements).

For furtherinformation please contact:

Chief Finance and Accounting Officer
Victorian Health Promotion Foundation
15-31 Pelham Street

CarltonVIC 3053

Phone: (03) 9667 1333

Fax:(03) 9667 1375



Attestation of compliance with
Ministerial Standing Direction

3.7.1 - Risk Management Framework
and Processes

[, Nicole Livingstone, certify that VicHealth has complied with
Ministerial Direction 3.7.1 — Risk Management Framework and
Processes. The VicHealth Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
verifies compliance with this Direction.

7 wo e O/Wu«j stone
Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM

Deputy Chair of the Board

15August 2017

Report of Operations

43



Financial Statements
\VVictorian Health Promotion Foundation
2016-17

44 Victorian Health Promotion Foundation Annual Financial Report 2016-17



Board Member’s, accountable officer’s
and chief finance and accounting
officer’s declaration

The attached financial statements for the Victorian Health Atthe time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance
Promotion Foundation (VicHealth) have been preparedin which would render any particularsincluded in the financial
accordance with Direction 5.2 of the Standing Directions of statementstobe misleading orinaccurate.

the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act
1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian
Accounting Standards, includinginterpretations, and other this day.
mandatory professionalreporting requirements.

We authorise the attached financial statements forissue on

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out
inthe comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet,
statement of changesin equity, cash flow statement and
accompanying notes presents fairly the financial transactions
during the year ended 30 June 2017 and financial position of
VicHealthat 30 June 2017.

7wao/u;;@m ij MM\

Ms Nicole Livingstone 0AM Ms Jerril Rechter Mr Dale Mitchell

Deputy Chair of the Board Accountable Officer Chief Finance and Accounting Officer
Melbourne Melbourne Melbourne

15August 2017 15August 2017 15August 2017
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VAGO

Independent AUditOl"S Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

To the Board of the Victorian Health Promotion Foundation

Opinion

Basis for
Opinion

Board’s
responsibilities
for the
financial
report

I have audited the financial report of the Victorian Health Promotion Foundation (the
foundation) which comprises the:

° balance sheet as at 30 June 2017

° comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended

° statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

° cash flow statement for the year then ended

° notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies

° board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance and accounting officer's
declaration.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the foundation as at 30 June 2017 and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of
Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting
Standards.

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the Act are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the foundation in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. My staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

The Board of the foundation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial
Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary
to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the foundation’s
ability to continue as a going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Level 31 / 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquiries@audit.vic.gov.au www.audit.vic.gov.au




Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial
report

MELBOURNE
25 August 2017

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the foundation’s internal control

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board

° conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
foundation to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Vars

/

Charlotte Jeffries
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive operating statement

for the financial year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
Notes ($’000) ($’000)
Income from transactions
Appropriationsand grants 2(a) 38,558 38,305
Interestand otherincome 2(b) 215 256
Totalincome 38,773 38,561
Expenses from transactions
Employee expenses 3(a) 7,702 8,160
Depreciationand amortisation 3(b) 175 165
Grantsandother expense transfers 3(c) 27,535 26,440
Other operatingexpenses 3(d) 2,940 2,829
Total expenses 38,352 37,594
Net result for the year 421 967
Comprehensive result for the year 421 967

The comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance sheet
as at 30 June 2017

2017 2016

Notes ($’000) ($’000)
Assets
Current assets
Cashandcashequivalents 4 4,696 4,435
Receivables 5 762 545
Prepayments 268 127
Total current assets 5,726 5,107
Non-current assets
Property, plantand equipment 6 164 221
Intangible assets 7 97 166
Total non-current assets 261 387
Totalassets 5,987 5,494
Current liabilities
Payables 8 665 687
Provisions: employee benefits 9 1,225 1,056
Total current liabilities 1,890 1,743
Non-current liabilities
Provisions: employee benefits 9 167 242
Total non-current liabilities 167 242
Total liabilities 2,057 1,985
Netassets 3,930 3,509
Equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 3,792 3,129
Reserves 10 138 380
Total equity 3,930 3,509

The balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017

Total

Equity at Transferof comprehensive Equity at

1July 2016 reserves result 30 June 2017

2017 ($°000) ($°000) ($’000) ($°000)
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 2,783 - 421 3,204
Transfer from/(to) reserves 346 242 - 588
Total accumulated surplus/(deficit) 3,129 242 421 3,792
Reserves 380 - - 380
Transfer (from)/to reserves - (242) - (242)
Totalreserves 380 (242) - 138
Total equity 3,509 - 421 3,930

Total

Equity at Transferof comprehensive Equity at

1July 2015 reserves result  30June 2016

2016 ($’000) ($°000) ($’000) ($°000)
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 1,816 - 967 2,783
Transfer from/(to) reserves - 346 - 346
Total accumulated surplus/(deficit) 1,816 346 967 3,129
Reserves 726 - - 726
Transfer (from)/toreserves - (346) - (346)
Totalreserves 726 (346) - 380
Total equity 2,542 - 967 3,509

The statement of changesin equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash flow statement

for the financial year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016

Notes ($’000) ($’000)
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Receipts from Government 38,539 38,189
Receipts from other entities 111 180
Interestreceived 121 143
Goods and Services Tax (paid to)/refund from the ATO 2,726 2,761
Total receipts 41,497 41,273
Payments
Payment of grantsand other transfers (27,555) (29,667)
Payments to suppliersand employees (13,631) (11,544)
Total payments (41,186) (41,211)
Net cash flow provided by/(used in) operating activities 13 311 62
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for non-financial assets (50) (42)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) investing activities (50) (42)
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 261 20
Cashandcashequivalents atthe beginning of the financial year 4,435 4,415
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 4 4,696 4,435

The cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1.Summary of significant
accounting policies

The annual financial statementsrepresent the audited general
purpose financial statements for the Victorian Health Promotion
Foundation (VicHealth) for the period ended 30 June 2017. The
purpose of the reportisto provide users withinformation about
VicHealth’s stewardship of resources entrusted toit.

1.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial
statements which have been preparedinaccordance with
the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian
Accounting Standards (AASs)issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented
inamanner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements.

The financial statementsalso comply with relevant Financial
Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of
Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs)
authorised by the Minister for Finance.

The Victorian Health Promotion Foundation (VicHealth) is a
not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus
paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit entities under the AASs.

The annualfinancial statements were authorised for issue by
the Board of VicHealth on 15 August 2017.

1.2 Basis of accounting preparation
and measurement

Accounting policies

Accounting policies are selected and applied ina manner
which ensures that the resulting financialinformation satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, and consequently
thatthe substance of the underlying transactions or other
eventsisreported.

The accounting policiesin thisreport have beenappliedin
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2017, and the comparative information presentedin these
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Going concern

The going concern basis was used to prepare the
financial statements.

Currency

These financial statements are presentedin Australian dollars,
the functionaland presentation currency of VicHealth.

Accrual basis of accounting

The financial statements, except for cash flow information,
have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, itemsare recognised as assets,
liabilities, equity, income ar expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those items; that is, they
arerecognisedinthereporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cashis received or paid.

Historic cost accounting

The financial statementsare preparedinaccordance with the
historical cost convention, except:

* non-current physicalassets which, subsequent to
acquisition, are measured at valuationand are re-assessed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carryingamounts
do not materially differ from their fair values

» thefairvalue of assets, whichis generally based on their
depreciated replacement value.

« employee benefit provisions which are generally based ona
net presentvalue calculation.

Historical costis based onthe fair values of the consideration
givenin exchange for assets.

Accounting estimates

Inthe application of AASs, managementis required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values
ofassetsand liabilities thatare notreadily apparent from other
sources. The estimatesand associated assumptions are based
on professionaljudgements derived from historical experience
andvarious other factors thatare believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimatesand underlyingassumptions are reviewed onan
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
inthe periodin which the estimate is revised, if the revision
affectsonly that period orin the period of the revision, and
future periodsifthe revision affects both currentand future
periods. Judgements made by managementin the application
of AASsthat have significant effects on the financial statements
and estimates, with arisk of material adjustmentsin the
subsequentreporting period, relate to:

 thefairvalue of plant and equipment

» assumptions foremployee benefit provisions based on likely
tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary
movementsand future discount.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Fair values

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, VicHealth
determinesthe policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurements such as property, plantand equipment
and financialinstruments, and for non-recurring fair value
measurements such as non-financial physical assets held for
sale,inaccordance with the requirements of AASB13 and the
relevant FRDs.

Allassetsand liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosedin the financial statementsare categorised within the
fairvalue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
levelinput thatis significant to the fair value measurement
asawhole:

* Levell-Quoted(unadjusted) market pricesinactive markets
foridenticalassetsor liabilities

» Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input thatis significant to the fair value measurementis
directly orindirectly observable

» Level 3 -Valuationtechniques for which the lowest level
input thatis significant to the fair value measurement
isunobservable.

Forthe purpose of fair value disclosures, VicHealth has
determined classes of assetsand liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Where applicable, VicHealth determines whether transfers
have occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based onthe lowest levelinput thatis
significant to the fair value measurementasawhole) at the end
of eachreporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

VicHealth assessesatthe end of each reporting period whether
thereis objective evidence that afinancial asset or group of
financialassetsisimpaired. All financial assets, except those
measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to
annualreview forimpairment.

Bad and doubtful debts for financial assetsare assessedona
regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off are
classifiedasatransaction expense.

Inassessingimpairment of statutory (non-contractual)
financialassets which are not financialinstruments, VicHealth
applies professionaljudgementin assessing materiality and
using estimates, averages and computational shortcutsin
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Victorian Health Promotion Foundation Annual Financial Report 2016-17

1.3 Reporting entity

The financial statementsrelate to VicHealth asanindividual
reportingentity. Its principal addressiis:

VicHealth
15-31 Pelham Street
CarltonVIC 3053

VicHealth was established under the Tobacco Act 1987. The Act
stipulates that VicHealth’s objectives are to:

(@) fund activity related to the promotion of good health, safety
orthe preventionand early detection of disease

(b)increase awareness of programs for promoting good health
inthe community through the sponsarship of sports, the arts
and popular culture

(c)encourage healthy lifestyles in the community, and support
activitiesinvolving participationin healthy pursuits

(d) fundresearch and development activities in support of
these objects.

VicHealthis predominantly funded by accrual-based
parliamentary appropriations for the provision of outputs.

1.4 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expensesandassetsarerecognised net of the amount
of associated GST, unlessthe GSTincurredis not recoverable

from the taxation authority. Inthis caseitisrecognised as part
of the cost of acquisition of the asset oras part of the expense.

Receivablesand payablesare stated inclusive of the amount of
GSTreceivable or payable. The netamount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authorityisincluded with
otherreceivables or payablesin the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented onagross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which
arerecoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are
presentedasanoperating cash flow.

Commitments for expenditure and contingent assetsand
liabilities are presented on a gross basis.



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

1.5 Rounding of amounts

Amountsinthe financial statements have been rounded to the
nearestthousand dollars, unless otherwise stated. Figuresin
the financial statements may not equate due to rounding.

1.6 Change in accounting policies

Subsequent tothe 201516 reporting period there have beenno
new or revised Accounting Standards adopted by VicHealth for
the first time with the exception of implementation of AASB 124
Related Party Transactions.

1.7 Comparative information

Certain figuresinthe financial statements have been
reclassified sotobetter presentthe financial position and
performance of VicHealth. The following have been reclassified:

« Comprehensive operating statement
* Note 2 categories ofincome

» Note 3 categories of expenses.

Financial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

1.8 Issued but not yet effective
Australian accounting and
reporting pronouncements

The table below is provided to assist entitiesin updating their

thatareissued but notyet effective for 2016-17 inaccordance
with paragraph 30 of AASB 108. This disclosure should be
included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies note
of entities’ financial reports. Entities are expected to review

therelevance of the proposed disclosure based on their

disclosureinrelation tothe Australianaccounting standards

own circumstances.

Standard/Interpretation®  Summary Applicable Impact on public sector entity
for annual financial statements
reporting
periods
beginning on
AASB 9 Financial The key changesinclude the simplified 1Jan2018 The assessment hasidentified that
Instruments requirements for the classification and theamendmentsare likely to result
measurement of financial assets, anew inearlier recognition of impairment
hedgingaccounting modeland arevised lossesand at more regular intervals.
impairment loss model to recognise
impairment losses earlier, as opposed While there will be no significant
to the current approach that recognises impact arising from AASB 9, there
impairment only when incurred. willbe achange tothe way financial
instruments are disclosed.
AASB 2010-7 Amendments ~ Therequirements for classifying 1Jan2018 The assessment hasidentified
to Australian Accounting and measuring financial liabilities that the financialimpact of
Standards arising from were added to AASB 9. The existing available for sale (AFS) assets will
AASB 9 (December 2010) requirements for the classification of now be reported through other
financial liabilities and the ability to use comprehensive income (OCl) and no
the fair value option have been retained. longer recycled to the profit and loss.
However, where the fair value optionis
used for financial Liabilities the change in Changesinown creditriskin respect
fair value is accounted for as follows: of liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss will
» thechangein fair value attributable now be presented within other
tochangesincreditriskis presented comprehensive income (OCI).
inother comprehensive income (0CI);
and Hedge accounting will be more
» otherfairvalue changesare presented closelyaligned Wlth commorl r|§k
. ) management practices makingit
in profitand loss. If thisapproach : .
. easier to have an effective hedge.
createsorenlargesanaccounting
mismatch in the profit or loss, the For entities with significant lending
effect of the changesin creditrisk are activities, an overhaul of related
alsopresentedin profitor loss. systems and processes may
be needed.
AASB 2014-1Amendments ~ Amends various AASstoreflect the 1Jan2018 Thisamending standard will defer

to Australian Accounting
Standards [Part E Financial
Instruments]

AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory
application date of AASB 9 to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018 as aconsequence of
Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to
amend reduced disclosure requirements.

the application period of AASB 9 to
the 2018-19reporting
periodinaccordance with the
transitionrequirements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Standard/Interpretation?  Summary Applicable Impact on public sector entity
for annual financial statements
reporting
periods
beginning on
AASB 2014-7 Amendments Amends various AASs toincorporatethe  1Jan 2018 The assessment has indicated that
to Australian Accounting consequentialamendments arising from there willbe no significant impact for
Standards arising from theissuance of AASB 9. the public sector.
AASB 9
AASB 15 Revenue from The core principle of AASB 15 requires 1Jan2018 The changesinrevenue recognition
Contracts with Customers anentity torecognise revenue when requirementsin AASB 15 may
the entity satisfies a performance resultinchanges to the timing
obligation by transferring a promised and amount of revenue recorded
good or service toacustomer. inthe financial statements. The
Standard will also require additional
disclosures on service revenue and
contract modifications.
AASB 2014-5Amendments Amends the measurement of trade 1Jan 2017, The assessment has indicated that
to Australian Accounting receivablesandthe recognition except there willbe no significant impact for
Standards arising from of dividends. amendments  the public sector.
AASB 15 toAASB 9
Trade receivables, that do not have a (Dec 2009)
significant financing component, are to and AASB 9
be measured attheir transaction price, (Dec 2010)
atinitialrecognition. apply from
Dividends are recognised in the profit 1Jan2018
and loss anly when:
* theentity’srighttoreceive payment
of the dividend is established;
 itisprobable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity; and
* theamountcanbe measuredreliably.
AASB 2015-8 Amendments  This Standard defers the mandatory 1Jan2018 Thisamending standard will defer

to Australian Accounting
Standards - Effective Date of
AASB 15

effective date of AASB 15 from
1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018.

the application period of AASB 15 for
for-profitentitiestothe 2018-19
reporting period in accordance with
the transition requirements.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Standard/Interpretation®  Summary Applicable Impact on public sector entity
for annual financial statements
reporting
periods
beginning on
AASB 2016-3 Amendments This Standard amends AASB 15 to 1Jan2018 The assessment has indicated that
to Australian Accounting clarify the requirements onidentifying there willbe no significant impact
Standards - Clarificationsto  performance obligations, principal for the public sector, other thanthe
AASB 15 versus agent considerations and impactidentified for AASB 15 above.
the timing of recognising revenue
from grantingalicence. The
amendments require:
» apromisetotransfertoacustomer
agoodorservice thatis ‘distinct’
toberecognisedasaseparate
performance obligation;
« foritems purchased online, the entity
isaprincipalifit obtains control of the
good or service prior to transferring to
the customer; and
« forlicencesidentified as beingdistinct
from other goods or servicesina
contract, entities need to determine
whether the licence transferstothe
customer over time (right to use) or at
apointintime (right toaccess).
AASB 2016-7 Amendments This Standard defers the mandatory 1Jan 2019 Thisamending standard will defer the
to Australian Accounting effective date of AASB 15 for not-for- application period of AASB 15 for not-
Standards — Deferral of AASB profit entities from 1 January 2018to 1 for-profit entities tothe 2019-20
15 for Not-for-Profit Entities ~ January 2019. reporting period.
AASB 2016-8 Amendments  This Standard amends AASB S and AASB 1Jan 2019 The assessment hasindicated that

to Australian Accounting
Standards — Australian
Implementation Guidance
for Not-for-Profit Entities

15toinclude requirementstoassist
not-for-profit entitiesinapplying the
respective standards to particular
transactions and events.
Theamendments:

* requirenon-contractualreceivables
arising from statutory requirements
(i.e.taxes, rates and fines) to be
initially measured and recognisedin
accordance with AASB 9 asif those
receivables are financialinstruments;
and

» clarifies circumstances whena
contract with a customeris withinthe
scope of AASB 15.

there will be no significant impact
for the public sector, other than the
impactsidentified for AASB 9 and
AASB 15 above.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Standard/Interpretation®  Summary Applicable Impact on public sector entity
for annual financial statements
reporting
periods
beginning on
AASB 16 Leases The key changesintroduced by AASB 1Jan 2019 The assessment has indicated that
16 include the recognition of most asmost operating leases will come
operating leases (which are current not on balance sheet, recognition of
recognised) on balance sheet. theright-of-use assetsand lease
liabilities will cause net debt
toincrease.
Ratherthan expensing the lease
payments, depreciation of right-
of-useassetsandintereston lease
liabilities will be recognised in the
income statement with marginal
impacton the operating surplus.
No change for lessors.
AASB 2016-4 Amendments The standard amends AASB 136 1Jan 2017 The assessment has indicated that
to Australian Accounting Impairment of Assets to remove thereis minimalimpact. Given the
Standards - Recoverable references to using depreciated specialised nature and restrictions
Amount of Non-Cash- replacement cost (DRC) as a measure of of public sector assets, the existing
Generating Specialised Assets  value in use for not-for-profit entities. useis presumed to be the highest
of Not-for-Profit Entities and best use (HBU), hence current
replacement cost under AASB 13
Fair Value Measurement is the same
asthedepreciated replacement cost
conceptunder AASB 136.
AASB 1058 Income of Not- This standard replaces AASB 1004 1Jan 2019 The assessment hasindicated that
for-Profit Entities Contributions and establishes revenue revenue from capital grants that
recognition principles for transactions are provided under an enforceable
where the consideration to acquire an agreement that have sufficiently
assetissignificantly less than fair value specific obligations, will now
toenable to not-for-profit entity to be deferred and recognised as
furtherits objectives. performance obligationsare
satisfied. Asaresult, the timing
recognition of revenue will change.
Notes:

(i) Forthecurrentyear, giventhe numberof consequentialamendmentstoAASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
the standards/interpretationshave been grouped togetherto provideamore relevant view of the upcoming changes.
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Inaddition to the new standards and amendments above, the
AASB hasissuedalist of otheramending standards thatare
not effective for the 2016-17 reporting period (as listed below).
Ingeneral, these amending standardsinclude editorial and
references changes thatare expectedto haveinsignificant
impactson public sectorreporting.

« AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
[AASB 112]

* AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107

» AASB 2016-5Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -
Classification and Measurements of Share-based
Payment Transactions

» AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -
Applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments with AASB 4
Insurance Contracts

* AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Transfers of Investment Property, Annual Improvements 2014-
16 Cycle and Other Amendments

» AASB2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Further Annual Improvements 2014-16 Cycle
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Note 2. Income from transactions

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
(a) Appropriation and grants
Generalappropriation 38,341 37,589
Grantsand Specialappropriation 217 716
Total appropriation and grants 38,558 38,305
(b) Interest and other income
Interestincome 123 136
OtherIncome 92 120
Totalinterest and otherincome 215 256

Income from transactions

Incomeisrecognisedinaccordance with AASB 118 Revenue and
tothe extentthatitis probable that the economic benefits will
flow to VicHealth and the income can be reliably measured.
Unearnedincome atreportingdateisreportedasincome
receivedinadvance. Amountsdisclosed asrevenue are, where
applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Income isrecognised for each of VicHealth’s major activities
as follows:

Appropriationincome

Appropriatedincome becomes controlled, andisrecognised by
VicHealth whenitis appropriated from the consolidated fund by
the Victorian Parliament, and applied to the purposes defined
under therelevant Appropriations Act and working agreement
with the Department of Health and Human Services.

Generalappropriationsrelates to monies paid to VicHealth
under section 32 of the Tobacco Act 1987.
Grants and special appropriations

Other Grantsrelate to miscellaneous fundingand/or grants to
deliver specific programs from other organisations.

Specialappropriations relates to funding to deliver specific
programs from the Federal or State Government.

Inaccordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, grants and other
transfers ofincome (other than contributions by owners)
arerecognisedasincome when VicHealth gains control of
the underlying assetsirrespective of whether conditions are
imposedon VicHealth’s use of the contributions.

Contributions are deferred asincome inadvance when
VicHealth hasapresentobligationtorepay themandthe
present obligation can bereliably measured.

Interestincome

Interestincomeincludesinterestreceived on bank term deposits.
Interestincomeisrecognised onatime-proportionate basis that
takesintoaccountthe effectiveyield onthe financial asset.

Otherincome

Otherincomerepresents feesand charges from
miscellaneous services.
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Note 3. Expenses from transactions

3.1 Schedule of Expenses

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
(a) Employee expenses
Salaries, wages, and leave payments 6,960 7,370
Defined contribution superannuation expense 621 669
Defined benefits superannuation expense 14 11
Otheron-costs 107 110
Total employee expenses 7,702 8,160
(b) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation
Office equipment 73 66
Fixturesand fittings 1 2
Motor vehicles 9 9
Total depreciation 83 77
Amortisation - IT software 92 88
Total depreciation and amortisation 175 165
(c) Grants and other expense transfers
Generalpurpose grants 26,644 25,285
Project specific expenses 891 1,155
Total grants and other expense transfers 27,535 26,440
(d) Other operating expenses
Personnel costs 554 541
Occupancy costs 696 673
Board and committee members fees 172 168
Externalaudit fees (Victorian Auditor-General’s Office) 22 22
Internalaudit fees 85 96
Generaladministration 864 808
Information systems 547 521
Total other operating expenses 2,940 2,829
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Expensesarerecognisedastheyareincurred and repartedin
the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include: wages and salaries, leave
entitlements, fringe benefits tax, work-cover premiums, and
superannuation expenses.

The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds
and contributions made by VicHealth are outlined in Note 3.2.

Depreciation

Depreciationis calculated onastraight-line basis, at arate that
allocates the assetvalue, lessany estimated residual value over
its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives
and depreciation method for allassetsare reviewed at least
annually, and adjustments made where appropriate.

Depreciationis provided on property, plantand equipment.
Depreciation begins when the assetis available for use, which
iswhenitisinthelocationand condition necessary forittobe
capable of operatinginamannerintended by management.

Assetswithacostinexcessof $2,000 are capitalised and
depreciation has been provided on depreciable assetssoasto
allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives.

The followingare estimated useful lives for non-current assets
onwhich the depreciation charges are based for both current
and prioryears:

» office equipment: 3-5years
« office furniture: 10years
 fixturesand fittings: 10years

* motorvehicles: 6 years.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with a costin excess of $2,000 are capitalised.
Amortisationis allocated tointangible assets with finite
usefullives onastraight-line basis over the asset’s useful life.
Amortisation begins when the assetisavailable for use; whenit
isinthe location and condition necessary forit to be capable of
operatinginthe mannerintended by management.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
anintangible asset with afinite useful life are reviewed at
leastattheendof each annualreporting period. In addition,
anassessmentis made ateachreporting date to determine
whetherthere areindicators that theintangible asset
concerned isimpaired. If so, the asset concernedis testedas to
whetherits carrying value exceeds itsrecoverableamount.

Any excess of the carryingamount over the recoverable amount
isrecognised asanimpairment loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over five
yearsinboththe currentand prioryears.

Interest expense

Interest expenses arerecognised as expenses in the periodin
which theyareincurred.

Grants and other expense transfers

Grantsandother transfersto third parties (other than
contributionstoowners)arerecognised asan expenseinthe
reporting periodin which they are paid or payable. Theserelate
tofundingand other agreements for delivery of health promotion
programsand campaigns and directimplementation costs.

Theyinclude transactions made to state-owned agencies, local
government, not-for profit-organisations, universities and
community groups.

Project specific expenses
Non-grantand wage expensesdirectly attributable to the
delivery of programs and associated activities.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day
running costsincurredinnormal operations.

Personnel costs: Agency staff, staff training, professional
developmentand payroll processing costs.

Occupancy costs: Costs associated with the lease of the office
buildingand the associated outgoings.

Board and committee member’s fees: Remuneration, allowances
and expenses paid to VicHealth Board and Committee Members.

External audit fees: Fees paid or payable to the Victorian Auditor-
General’s Office for the audit of these financial statements.

Internal audit fees: Costs incurred for the provision of internal
audit servicesand associated activities.

General administration: Costsincurred due to the administration
of VicHealth such as legal, marketing and advertising,
consultants, printing and stationery.

Information systems: Rental costs for IT equipment, non-capitalised
IThardware and software purchases, and services/support.

Bad and doubtful debts: Bad and doubtful debts are assessed on
aregularbasis. Those bad debts considered as written off are
classifiedasatransaction expense.

Disposal of non-financial assets: Any gain or loss on the sale of
non-financial assetsisrecognised at the date that control of the
assetis passedtothe buyer,andis determined after deducting
fromthe proceeds the carrying value of the asset at that time.
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Note 3.2. Superannuation

Paid contribution for the year

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
(a) Defined benefit plan
ESS Super New Scheme 14 11
Total defined benefit plan 14 11
(b) Defined contribution plan
VicSuper 253 286
Hesta 63 70
UniSuper 37 29
Care Super 30 28
Vision Super 30 31
Australian Super 28 20
First State 25 23
Other 155 182
Total defined contribution plan 621 669
Total superannuation contributions 635 680

Employees of VicHealth are entitled to receive superannuation
benefits and VicHealth contributes toboth the defined benefit
and defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution superannuation plans

Inrelationto defined contribution (i.e. accumulation)
superannuation plans, the associated expenseis simply the
employer contributions that are paid or payableinrespect

of employees who are members of these plans during the
reparting period. Contributions to defined contribution
superannuation plansare expensed whenincurred. VicHealth
pays superannuation contributionsinaccordance with the
superannuation guarantee legislation.
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Defined benefit superannuation plans

Theamountchargedtothe comprehensive operating statement
inrespect of defined benefit superannuation plansrepresents
the contributions made by VicHealth to the superannuation
plansinrespect of the services of current VicHealth staff during
thereporting period. Superannuation contributions are made
totheplansbased ontherelevantrulesof each planandare
based upon actuarial advice. The defined benefit plans provide
benefits based onyears of service and final average salary.
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Note 4. Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

($°000) ($°000)

Cashonhand 4 1
Cashatbank 345 358
Bank depositsat call 347 4,076
Term deposits 4,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,696 4,435

Cashandcash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash
atbank, depositsat call, term deposits and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of sixmonths or less,
which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitmentsrather than forinvestment purposes, and which

Note 5. Receivables

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash,and are
subject toaninsignificant risk of changesin value.

VicHealth assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
afinancialasset or group of financial assetsisimpaired.

2017 2016
($’000) ($’000)
(a) Contractual
Debtors 125 23
Accruedincome 10 8
Total contractualreceivables 135 31
(b) Statutory
GST creditsreceivable 627 514
Total statutory receivables 627 514
Total receivables 762 545

Receivables

Receivables consist of:

Contractual receivables

Theseinclude debtors for services provided and accrued
interestincome.

Debtorsare carried at nominalamounts due, and due for
settlement generally within 30 days from date of recognition.
Collectability of debtsisreviewed onanongoing basis, and
debtswhichare knowntobe uncollectable are written off.

A provision for doubtfulreceivablesis made when thereis
objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad
debtsarewritten off whenidentified.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effectiveinterest method, less an allowance forimpairment.

Receivablesthatare contractualare classified as
financialinstruments.

Statutory receivables

These are predominantly GST input tax creditsrecoverable.

Statutoryreceivables arerecognised and measured similarly
tocontractualreceivables (except forimpairment), but are not
classified as financialinstruments because they do not arise
fromacontract.
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Note 6. Property, plant and equipment

6.1 Property, plant and equipment schedule

Gross carrying amount

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
($’000) ($°000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Office equipment 477 467 340 268 137 199
Office furniture 19 19 19 18 = 1
Fixturesand fittings 831 815 812 811 19 4
Motor vehicles 52 52 44 35 8 17
Total 1,379 1,353 1,215 1,132 164 221
6.2 Property, plant and equipment reconciliation
Office Office Fixtures and Motor
equipment furniture fittings vehicles Total
2017 ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($°000) ($’000)
Fair value
Opening balance 467 19 815 52 1,353
Additions 10 - 16 - 26
Transfers = - = - -
Fair value closing balance 477 19 831 52 1,379
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 268 18 811 35 1,132
Depreciation 72 1 1 9 83
ﬁfoc;;r':‘g“lgzt::::p’“iam" 340 19 812 44 1,215
Written-down value 137 - 19 8 164
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Office Office Fixtures and Motor

equipment furniture fittings vehicles Total
2016 ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($7000) ($°000)
Fair value
Opening balance 444 19 815 52 1,330
Additions 26 - = - 26
Disposals (3) (3)
Fair value closing balance 467 19 815 52 1,353
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 203 18 809 26 1,056
Depreciation 66 - 2 9 77
Accqmulated depreciation 268 18 811 35 1,132
closing balance
Written-down value 199 1 4 17 221

6.3 Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets
Carrying Fairvalue mt_easurer_nent“f atend of
I v reporting period using:
30 June 2017 Levell Level 2 Level 3

2017 ($°000) ($7000) ($7000) ($7000)
Office equipment 137 - = 137
Office furniture = - = -
Fixturesand fittings 19 - = 19
Motor vehicles 8 - = 8
Written-down value 164 - = 164
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Fair value measurement® at end of

amoﬁﬁ:;ysig% reporting period using:
30 June 2016 Levell Level 2 Level 3
2016 ($°000) ($7000) ($7000) ($7000)
Office equipment 199 - = 199
Office furniture 1 - = 1
Fixturesand fittings 4 - = 4
Motor vehicles 17 - = 17
Written-down value 221 - = 221
Note:
(i) Classifiedinaccordance with the fair value hierarchy (refer Note 1.2).
6.4 Reconciliation of level 3 fair value
Office Office Fixtures and Motor
equipment furniture fittings vehicles
2017 ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Opening balance 199 1 4 17
Purchases/(sales) 10 - 16 -
Gains or losses recognised in net result
Depreciation (72) 1) 1) 9)
Closing balance 137 - 19 8
Office Office  Fixturesand Motor
equipment furniture fittings vehicles
2016 ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Opening balance 241 1 6 26
Purchases/(sales) 26 - = -
Transfersin/(out) of Level 3 (3) - - -
Gains or losses recognised in net result
Depreciation (66) - 2) (9)
Closing balance 199 1 4 17
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There were no changesinvaluationtechniques throughout the
period to 30 June 2017.

Forallassets measuredat fair value, the current useis
considered the highestand best use. There have beenno
transfers between levels during the period.

Vehicles

VicHealth acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of
them before completion of their economic life. The process
of acquisition, use and disposalin the market is managed by
VicHealth who setrelevant depreciation rates duringuse to
reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As aresult, the fair
value of vehicles does not differ materially from the carrying
value (depreciated cost).

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures
and fittings

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and fittings is held
atcarryingvalue (depreciated cost). When office equipment,
furniture and fixtures and fittings is specialised in use, such
thatitisrarely sold otherthanas partofagoingconcern, the
depreciated replacement costis usedtoestimate the fair value.
Unlessthereis marketevidence thatcurrentreplacement costs
are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is
considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will be
materially different from the existing carrying value.

Property, plant and equipment

Allnon-current physical assetsare measured initially at cost
and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated
depreciationandimpairment. Where an assetisacquired
fornoornominalcost, the costisits fair value at the date of
acquisition. Details about the valuation techniques and inputs
usedindetermining the fair value of non-financial physical
assetsarediscussedin Note 1.2.

Depreciated historical costis generally areasonable proxy for
depreciated replacement cost because of the short lives of the
assetsconcerned.

Revaluations of non-current physical assets

Non-current physical assetsare measured at fair valuein
accaordance with FRD 103F Non-current physical assets. In
accordance with FRD 103F, VicHealth’s non-current physical
assetswereassessedtodetermine whether revaluation of the
non-current physical assets wasrequired.

Disposal of non-financial assets

Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assetsisrecognised
inthe comprehensive operating statement at the date that
controloftheassetis passed tothe buyer,andisdetermined
after deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the
assetatthattime.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Apartfromintangible assets with indefinite useful lives, all
other non-financial assetsare assessed annually forindications
of impairment.

Ifthereisanindication of impairment, the assets concerned
aretestedastowhether their carrying value exceeds their
possiblerecoverable amount. Where anasset’s carrying value
exceedsitsrecoverable amount, the differenceis written off
asanexpense excepttothe extentthatthe write-down canbe
debitedtoanassetrevaluation surplus amount applicable to
that same class of asset.

Ifthereisanindicationthatthere hasbeenachangeinthe
estimate of anasset’srecoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised, the carryingamount shall
beincreasedtoitsrecoverableamount. Thisreversalofthe
impairment loss occurs only to the extent that the asset’s
carryingamount does not exceed the carryingamount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had beenrecognised in prior years.

Itisdeemedthat,inthe event of the loss or destruction of an
asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the
asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary
has been made. The recoverable amount for most assetsis
measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and
fair value less costs tosell. Recoverable amount for assets
held primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the
higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be
obtained fromthe asset and fair value less costs to sell.
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Note 7. Intangible assets

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
Cost
Opening balance 1,318 1,298
Additions 24 20
Cost closing balance 1,342 1,318
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 1,152 1,065
Amortisation expense 93 87
Accumulated amortisation closing balance 1,245 1,152
Written-down value 97 166

Intangible assets

Intangible assetsrepresentidentifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substancerelating to computer software and
development costs (where applicable).

Intangible assetsare initially recognised at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost, less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Costsincurred subsequent toinitial acquisition are capitalised
whenitis expected thatadditional future economic benefits
will flow to VicHealth.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assetsare tested annually forimpairment
(i.e.whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable
amount, and so require write-downs) and whenever thereis an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Allother assetsare
assessed annually forindications of impairment, except

for financial assets.
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Ifthereisanindication of impairment, the assets concernedare
tested astowhether their carrying value exceeds their possible
recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds
itsrecoverable amount, the difference is written offasanother
economic flow, except to the extent that the write-down can be
debitedtoanassetrevaluation surplus amount applicable to
that class of asset.

Itisdeemed that, inthe event of the loss of anasset, the future
economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be
replaced unless a specific decision tothe contrary hasbeen
made. The recoverable amount for most assetsis measured at
the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less
coststosell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily
togeneratenet cashinflowsis measured at the higher of the
presentvalue of future cash flows expected to be obtained from
theassetand fair value less costs tosell.
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Note 8. Payables

2017 2016
($’000) ($’000)
(a) Contractual payables
Accrued wages and salaries 134 119
Grants payable 93 113
Accrued expenses 75 75
Trade creditors 336 359
Other 16 17
Total contractual payables 654 683
(b) Statutory payables
GST/PAYG payable 11 4
Total statutory payables 11 4
Total payables 665 687

Payables consist of:

Contractual payables

These consist predominantly of accounts payable representing
liabilities for grants, goods and services provided to VicHealth
prior tothe end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise
when VicHealth becomes obliged to make future paymentsin
respect of the purchase of those goods and services ar provision

of grant conditions.

The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually net

30days.

Contractual payablesare initially recognised at fair value, and
then subsequently carried atamortised cost.

Statutory payables

Examples of these are goods and services taxand fringe

benefits tax payables.

Statutory payablesarerecognised and measured similarly
tocontractual payables, but are not classified as financial
instruments and notincludedin the category of financial
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from
acontract. Statutory payablesare paid by the relevant

legislative due date.
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Note 9. Provisions: Employee benefits

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
Current provisions
Annual leave 512 490
Longservice leave 601 468
On-costs Annualleave 53 50
Longservice leave 53 48
Total current provisions 1,225 1,056
Current employee benefits
Expectedtobe utilised within 12 months 645 660
Expectedtobe utilised after 12 months 580 396
Total current employee benefits 1,225 1,056
Non-current provisions
Longservice leave 151 219
On-costs 16 23
Total non-current provisions 167 242
Total provisions 1,392 1,298
Movement in employee benefits
Opening balance 1,298 1,127
Settlement made during the year (706) (719)
Provision made during the year 800 8390
Balance at end of year 1,392 1,298
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Provisions

Provisionsarerecognised when VicHealth has a present
obligation, the sacrifice of economic benefitsis probable, and
the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

Theamountrecognised asaprovisionis the best estimate of the
considerationrequired to settle the present obligationatthe
end of the reporting period, takinginto account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provisionis
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carryingamountis the present value of those
cash flows usingadiscount rate that reflects the time value of
money and risks specific to the provision.

Employee benefits

Provisionis made for benefits accruingto employeesinrespect
of wages andsalaries, annual leave, timein lieuand long service
leave for services rendered tothe reporting date.

Wages and salaries, annual leave, time in lieu

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits, annualleave, purchased leave and timein lieuare
recognisedinthe provision foremployee benefitsas current
liabilities as VicHealth does not have an unconditionalright to
defer settlement of these liahilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement,
liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and time in lieu
are measured at:

» presentvalue —componentthat VicHealth does not expect to
wholly settle within 12 months

» undiscountedvalue — component that VicHealth expectsto
wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave

The liahility for long service leave (LSL) isrecognised in the
provision for employee benefits.

Current liability — unconditional LSL (representing seven or

more years of continuous service) is disclosed in the notes
tothefinancial statementsasacurrent liability even where
VicHealth does not expect to settle the liability within 12
months because it will not have the unconditionalright to defer
the settlement of the entitlement should anemployee take
leave within 12 months.

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

» presentvalue —componentthat VicHealth does not expect to
wholly settle within 12 months

» undiscounted value — compaonent that VicHealth expects to
wholly settle within 12 months.

Non-current liability — conditional LSL (representing less than
sevenyearsof continuous service) is disclosed asanon-current
liability. Thereisan unconditional right to defer the settlement
ofthe entitlement untilthe employee has completed the
requisite years of service. Conditional LSLisrequired to be
measured at present value.

Considerationis givento the expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee departure and periods of service.
Expected future paymentsarediscounted usinginterest rates of
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities in Australia.

On-costs

Employee benefit on-costs, such as worker’s compensation
premium and superannuation are recognised together with
provisions for employee benefits.
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Note 10. Reserves

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
Externally funded programs reserve

Bystanders for Primary Prevention Program 105 -
National Community Attitudes Towards Violence Against Women Survey = 60
Sports Recreation Victoria = 50
Victorian Law Enforcement Drug Fund 13 270
Other 20 -
Total externally funded programs reserve 138 380

VicHealth periodically receives special appropriations or multiple financial years. As at balance date unspent funds are
other grantstodeliver specific programs. This fundingis often allocatedtoareservetoensurethese fundsare quarantined for

received upfrontandisrecognised asrevenueinaccordance theirintended purpose.
with Note 2 with the delivery of the program occurring over
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Note 11. Commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating

and capitalcommitmentsarising from contracts. These
commitments are disclosed by way of anote at their nominal
value and areinclusive of the goods and services tax (GST)
payable. Inaddition, whereitis considered appropriate

and provides additional relevantinformation to users, the

net present values of significant individual projects are

stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as
commitmentsonce therelated liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet.

11.1 Leases
2017 2016
($’000) ($’000)
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
No longer thanoneyear 604 631
Longerthanoneyearandnotlongerthan five years 1,774 2,450
Total 2,378 3,081

Lease commitments consist of information technology
equipment leases and an office tenancy lease.

Leasesareclassifiedattheirinceptionaseither operating
or finance leases based on the economic substance of the
agreementsoastoreflectthe risksand rewardsincidental
toownership.

Leases of property, plantand equipment are classified as
finance leases whenever the terms of the lease substantially
transferalltherisksand rewards of ownership from the
lessortothe lessee. Allother leases are classified as
operating leases.

11.2 Expenditure commitments

Operating leases

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals,

arerecognisedasanexpenseinthe comprehensive operating
statement on astraight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basisis more representative of the
time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased
asset. The leased assetisnotrecognisedin the balance sheet.

Leasehold Improvements

The cost of leasehold improvementsis capitalised asanasset and
depreciated over theremainingterm of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the improvements, whicheveristhe shorter.

The following commitments have not beenrecognised as liabilities in the financial statements.

2017 2016
($’000) ($°000)

Expenditure commitments
No longer thanoneyear 14,703 14,361
Longerthanoneyearandnotlongerthan five years 10,878 18,150
Total 25,581 32,511

VicHealth has enteredinto certain agreements for funding
of grants for multiple years. The payment of future years’
instalments of these grantsis dependent on the funded
organisation meeting specified accountability requirements

and the continued availability of funds from the Government.

Instalments of grants to be paid in future years are subject to
the funded organisations meeting accountability requirements.
Additionally VicHealth entersinto multi-year contracts for the
purchase of various goods and/or services.
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Note 12. Financial instrument

12.1 Financial risk management
objectives and policies

VicHealth’s principal financialinstruments comprise of:

» cashandcashequivalents
* receivables (excluding statutory receivables)

» payables (excluding statutory payables).

The main purposein holding financialinstrumentsisto
prudentially manage VicHealth’s financial risks within the
organisation’s policy parameters.

Categorisation of financialinstruments

Financialinstrumentsarise out of contractualagreements
thatgiverisetoafinancialasset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the
nature of VicHealth’s activities, certain financial assets and
financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract.
Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet

the definition of financialinstrumentsin AASB 132 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. For example, statutory receivables
arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition
of financialinstrumentsasthey donotarise under contract.

Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, adistinctionis
made between those financial assets and financial liabilities
that meet the definition of financialinstrumentsinaccordance
with AASB 132 and those that do not.

The followingrefers to financialinstruments unless
otherwise stated.

Loans and receivables

Loansandreceivablesare financialinstrument assets with fixed
anddeterminable paymentsthatare not quoted onanactive
market. These assetsareinitially recognised at fair value plus
anydirectly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent toinitial
measurement, loansand receivables are measured at amortised
costusing the effective interest method, less any impairment.

The loansandreceivables categoryincludes cash and
deposits, term deposits with maturity greater than three
months, trade receivables, loansand other receivables, but
notstatutoryreceivables.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financialasset and allocatinginterest
income over therelevant period. The effective interest rateis
therate thatexactly discountsestimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, ashorter period.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financialinstrument liabilities are initially recognised on

the date they are originated. They are initially measured at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent toinitial recognition, these financialinstruments
are measured at amortised cost with any difference between
theinitialrecognised amountand the redemption value being
recognisedin profitand loss over the period of the interest-
bearing liahility, using the effective interest rate method.

Financialinstrument liabilities measured at amortised cost
include all of VicHealth’s contractual payables, deposits held
and advancesreceived, and interest-bearingarrangements
otherthanthose designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Table 12 (a) Categorisation of financialinstruments and holding gain/(loss)
The carryingamounts of VicHealth’s contractual financial assets and financial liabilities by category are set out as follows:

Contractual financial assets and liabilities

2017 2017 Holding 2016 2016 Holding
Financial assets/ gain/(loss) Financial assets/ gain/(loss)
liabilities ($°000) ($°000) liabilities ($°000) ($’000)
Financial assets
Cashanddeposits 4,696 123 4,435 136
Loansandreceivables® = 31 -
Total financial assets 4,831 123 4,466 136
Financial liabilities
Contractual payables® 654 - 683 -
Total financial liabilities 654 - 683 -

Note:

(i) Thetotalamountsdisclosed exclude statutory amounts(e.g. GSTinput tax creditrecoverable and taxes payable).
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12.2 Creditrisk

Creditrisk arises from the contractual financial assets of
VicHealth, which comprise cash and deposits and non-statutory
receivables. VicHealth’s exposure to credit risk arises from

the potential default of acounter party on their contractual
obligations resultingin financial loss to VicHealth. Credit risk is
measured at fair value and is monitored onaregular basis.

Creditrisk associated with VicHealth’s contractual financial
assetsis minimal because the main debtoris the Victorian
Government. For debtors other than Government, VicHealth has
limited credit risk due to limited dealings with entities external
tothe Victorian or Commonwealth Government.

In addition, VicHealth does not engage in high risk hedging for

its financial assets and mainly obtains financial assets with
variableinterest rates. VicHealth policy is to deal with financial
institutions with high credit ratings.

Provision of impairment for financial assetsis calculated based
on past experience,and currentand expected changesin client
credit ratings. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties

of the debtor, default payments and debts which are more than
90 days overdue.

Exceptasotherwise detailedin the followingtable, the carrying
amount of contractual financial assetsrecorded in the financial
statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents
VicHealth’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Table 12(b) Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Financial
institutions Government Other Other Other
(AAACredit agencies (AAA (AA credit (AA- credit (no credit
Rating) CreditRating) rating) rating) rating) Total
2017 ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000)
Cashandcashequivalents = . = 4,696 = 4,696
Contractualreceivables = - = - 135 135
Total - - - 4,696 135 4,831
2016
Cashandcashequivalents = - = 4,435 = 4,435
Contractualreceivables = - = - 31 31
Total - - - 4,435 31 4,466
Table 12(c) Ageing analysis of contractual financial assets
Past due but not impaired
Not past Impaired
Carrying dueand not Less than 3 months financial
amount impaired 1month 1-3months tolyear 1-5years assets
2017 ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000) ($°000)
Cashandcashequivalents 4,696 4,696 = - = - -
Contractualreceivables 135 135 = - = - =
Total 4,831 4,831 - - - - -
2016
Cashandcash equivalents 4,435 4,435 = - = - =
Contractualreceivables 31 23 = - 8 - =
Total 4,466 4,458 - - 8 - -
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12.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity riskis therisk that VicHealth would be unable to meet
its financial obligations asand when they fall due. VicHealth’s
maximum exposure to liquidity riskis the carryingamounts of
financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet.
VicHealth managesits liquidity risk as follows:

+ carefulmaturity planning of its financial obligations based on
forecasts of future cash flows maintaining an adequate level
of uncommitted funds that can be drawn at short notice to
meetitsshorttermobligations

Table 12(d) Maturity analysis of contractual financial liabilities

 holdinginvestmentsand other contractual financial assets
thatarereadily tradeable in the financial markets.

It operates under the Government’s fair payment policy of
settling financial obligations generally within 30 days.

VicHealth’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant
basedon prior periods’ dataand current assessment of risk.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis
for VicHealth’s contractual financial liabilities.

Maturity Dates

Carrying Nominal 3monthsto1l

amount amount Lessthan1 1-3months year 1-5years
2017 ($’000) ($°000) month ($°000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Contractual payables 654 654 638 11 5 -
Total 654 654 638 11 5 -
2016
Contractual payables 682 682 672 5 5 -
Total 682 682 672 5 5 -
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12.4 Market risk

VicHealth’s exposure to market riskis primarily through interest
raterisk. VicHealth has aninsignificant exposure to currency
riskand other marketrisks.

VicHealth does not hold any interest-bearing financial liabilities,
therefore has nil exposure tointerest rate risk.

Table 12(e) Interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities

Cash flowinterestrateriskistherisk that the future cash flows
ofafinancialinstrument will fluctuate because of changesin
marketinterestrates.

VicHealth has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks
throughits cash and deposits, term deposits as these assets
are heldinvariableinterest rate accounts. Receivablesare non-
interest bearing.

The carryingamounts of financialassets and financial
liabilities that are exposed tointerestrates are outlined
inthe following table.

Interest rate exposure
Weighted Carrying Variable  Non-interest
average amount Fixedinterest interestrate bearing
2017 interestrate ($°000) rate ($°000) ($°000) ($°000)
Financial assets
Cashanddeposits 1.5% 4,696 4,000 347 349
Contractualreceivables = 135 = - 135
Total financial assets - 4,831 4,000 347 484
Financial liabilities
Contractual payables = 654 = - 654
Total financial liabilities - 654 - - 654
Interest rate exposure
Weighted Carrying Variable Non-interest
average amount Fixedinterest interestrate bearing
2016 interestrate ($°000) rate ($°000) ($°000) ($°000)
Financial assets
Cashanddeposits 1.6% 4,435 - 4,076 359
Contractualreceivables = 31 = - 31
Total financial assets - 4,446 - 4,076 390
Financial liabilities
Contractual payables = 683 = - 683
Total financial liabilities - 683 - - 683
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12.5 Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Takinginto account past performance, future expectations,
economic forecasts, and management’s knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, VicHealth believes the
following movementis ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12
months:aparallel shift of +1% and -1% in market interest
rates (AUD).

Table 12(f) Interest risk exposure - sensitivity analysis

The table below discloses theimpact on net operating result
and equity for each category of financialinstrument held

by VicHealth at year-end as presented to key management
personnel, if the below movements were to occur.

VicHealth’s sensitivity tointerestrateriskis outlinedin the
following table.

-100 +100 basis -100 +100 basis
basis points points basis points points
Carrying
amount Netresult Net result Equity Equity
2017 ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Financial assets
Cashandcashdeposits 4,696 (43) 43 (43) 43
Receivables 135 - = - =
Total financial assets 4,831 (43) 43 (43) 43
Financial liabilities
Payables 654
Total financial liabilities 654
Carrying
amount Net result Net result Equity Equity
2016 ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)
Financial assets
Cashand cashdeposits 4,435 (41) 41 (41) 41
Receivables 31 - = - =
Total financial assets 4,466 (41) 41 (41) 41
Financial liabilities
Payables 683 - = - =
Total financial liabilities 683 - - - -

12.6 Fair value

The fair values and net fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as follows:

» Levell-thefairvalueof financialassetsand financial liabilities
with standard termsand conditions and traded in active liquid
marketsis determined with reference to quoted market prices

» Level 2 —thefairvalueis determined usinginputs other than
quoted pricesthatare observable for the financial asset or
liability, either directly orindirectly
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» Level 3 —-thefairvalue of financial assets and financial
liabilitiesis determinedinaccordance with generally accepted
pricingmodels based on discounted cash flow analysis.

VicHealth considers that the carryingamount of financial assets
and financial liabilities recordedin the financial report tobe a
fairapproximation of their fair values, because of the short-
term nature of the financialinstruments and the expectation
that they will be paidin full.
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Note 13. Reconciliation of net result for the period to net cash flows
from operating activities

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)
Net result for the period 421 967
Non-cash movements
Depreciationand amortisation 175 165
Movementsin assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decreaseinreceivables (217) 134
(Increase)/decreasein prepayments (141) 97
Increase/(decrease) in payables (21) (1,472)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 94 171
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 311 62

Note 14. Responsible persons disclosures

14.1 Responsible persons appointments

Inaccordance with the Ministerial Directionsissued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994,
the followingdisclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Responsible Minister

The Hon. JillLHennessy, MLA, Minister for Health 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Governing Board

Professor John Catford — Chair 1/07/2016 - 30/09/2016
Ms FionaMcCormack — Chair(1/10/2016 to 30/06/2017) 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Ms Nicole Livingstone OAM — Deputy Chair 1/07/2016 -30/06/2017
Ms Susan Crow 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Dr Sally Fawkes 1/10/2016 - 30/06/2017
Mr Nick Green 0AM 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Professor Margaret Hamilton AO 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Ms Colleen Hartland MLC 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Mr Ben Hartung 1/10/2016 - 30/06/2017
The Hon Wendy LovellMLC 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Ms Veronica Pardo 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
Ms Sarah Ralph® 1/07/2016 -29/11/2016
Mr Simon Ruth 1/07/2016 -30/06/2017
Ms Natalie Suleyman MP 1/07/2016 -30/06/2017
Mr Stephen Walter 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017

(*)Ms Ralphresigned on 23 August 2016. The Governorin Counselaccepted her resignation effective 29 November 2016.

Accountable Officer
Ms Jerril Rechter 1/07/2016 - 30/06/2017
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14.2 Responsible persons remuneration

Theremuneration of responsible personsisdisclosed as follows:

Income band
2017 2016
No.
$0-9,999 5 7
$10,000-19,999 10 7
$20,000-29,999 = 1
$290,000-299,999 = 1
$300,000 - 309,999 1 -
Total numbers 16 16
Totalamount $460,502 $431,094

Totalremunerationreceived or receivable by the Accountable
Officer wasin the range: $300,000 — $309,999 ($290,000 —
$299,999in 2015-16).

Remuneration of board membersis prescribed by Governaorin
Council. The Parliamentary members of the Board received no
remuneration for their services on the VicHealth Board.

Remuneration comprises benefitsinall forms of consideration
paid, payable or provided in exchange for services rendered, and
isdisclosedinthe following categories:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits include
amountssuch assalaries, performance incentives, leave
taken, aswellasnon-monetary benefits such as allowances
and car parking.

Post-employment benefitsinclude amounts such as
superannuation entitlementsand otherretirement benefits paid
or payable onadiscrete basis when employment has ceased.

Other long-term benefitsinclude long service leave, other long-
service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination benefits include termination of employment
paymentsincluding leave payments.

2017
Salaries and other short-term benefits $426,339
Post-employment benefits $34,163
Other long-term benefits =
Termination payments =
Total remuneration $460,502
Total number of responsible persons officers 16

Thisisthe firstyear ofimplementation of AASB124, hence no comparative figures are required to be disclosed.
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14.3 Responsible persons related
party transactions

VicHealthis awholly owned and controlled entity of the State of
Victoria. Related parties of VicHealth include:

 allkey management personneland their close family
members; and

+ allCabinet Ministers and their close family members.

« alldepartmentsand public sector entities that are controlled
and consolidatedintothe whole of state consolidated
financial statements.

Allrelated party transactions have beenenteredintoonan
arm’s length basis.

Key management personnel (KMP) of VicHealth include the
Portfolio Ministers and Cabinet Ministers, VicHealth Board
Members and Chief Executive Officer as determined by VicHealth.
Theremuneration detailed in Note 14.2 excludes the salaries
and benefits the Portfolio Ministersreceive. The Minister’s
remunerationand allowancesis set by the Parliamentary
Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968, and is reported within the
Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Transactions with key management personnel
and other related parties

Giventhe breadth and depth of State Government activities,
related parties transact with the Victorian public sectorin
amanner consistent with other members of the publice.g.
stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further
employment of processes within the Victorian public sector
occur ontermsand conditions consistent with the Public
Administration Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards
issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission.

The Tobacco Act stipulates that VicHealth has arepresentational
Board member composition, consequently thereisanincreased
likelihood of related party transactions as Board members
oftenare either employed or serve on Boards of organisations
that VicHealth transacts with.

During the reporting period, related parties of key
management personnel were awarded contracts on terms

and conditions equivalent for those that prevailinarm’s length
transactions under VicHealth’s Grant-making and Procurement
policies and guidelines, including management of conflicts

of interest.

Allother transactionsthat may have occurred with key
management personneland theirrelated parties have been
trivialor domesticin nature. In this context, transactions are
only disclosed if they are considered of interest to users of
the financialreportin making and evaluating decisions about
the allocation of scare resources. The transactions generally
related toawarding of grants and fundingas outlined in the
followingtable:

Table 14 (a) Expenditure transactions (including grant payments) of responsible persons and their related parties

2017

($°000)

Cricket Victoria of which Ms Susan Crow served asaBoard member until 13 April 2017 550
Cycling Australia of which Mr Nick Green served as the Chief Executive Officer 10
Melbourne City Football Club of which Ms Susan Crow served as an employee 42
VicSport of which MrBen Hartung®served as a Director 156
Victorian AIDS Council of which Mr Simon Ruth served as the Chief Executive Officer 60

Thisisthe first year ofimplementation of AASB124, hence no comparative figures are required to be disclosed

Note:
(i) MrBenHartungcommencedas VicHealth Board memberon 1 October 2017.
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Significant transactions with government-related entities

During the financial period VicHealth funding received or receivable from government-related entity transactions were:

2017
Entity ($’000)
Department of Health and Human Services — Appropriation $38,341
Department of Premier and Cabinet — Special Purpose Grant $105
Thisisthe firstyear ofimplementation of AASB124, hence no comparative figures are required to be disclosed.
Note 15. Remuneration of executives
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and following employee resignations. Theremunerationin the
Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the following table only relates to their remuneration payablein
reporting period are shownin the table below. During the year theirrole asan Executive Officer.
anumber of employees acted in Executive Officer positions
2017
Salaries and other short-term benefits $812,972
Post-employment benefits $75,194
Other long-term benefits $9,773
Termination payments $14,553
Totalremuneration $912,492
Total number of executive officers 6
Total annualised employee equivalent® 5

Note:

(i) Annualised employee equivalentisbased on38ordinary hours per week over the reporting period. The variance between number of executive officers and
annualised employee equivalentisreflective of resignations duringthe year.

Thisifthe first year ofimplementation of FRD21C, hence no » Termination benefitsinclude termination of employment
comparative figuresare required to be disclosed. paymentsincluding leave payments

Remuneration comprises employee benefitsinall forms of Several factorsaffected total remuneration payable to
consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services  executives over the year. Anumber of employment contracts
rendered, andis disclosed in the following categories. were completed during the year. Anumber of executives received

bonus payments during the year. These bonus payments depend

* Salaries and other short-term employee benefits include amounts on the terms of individual employment contracts.

such assalaries, performanceincentives, leave taken, as well
asnon-monetary benefits such asallowances and car parking.

» Post-employment benefits include amounts such as
superannuation entitlements and other retirement benefits.

» Otherlong-term benefitsinclude long service leave, other long-
service benefit or deferred compensation.
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Note 16. Contingencies

The contingent assetsand liabilities as balance date are listed in the following table:

2017 2016
($°000) ($°000)

Contingent assets = -

Contingent liabilities - _

Contingent assetsandcontingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of anote and, if
quantifiable, are measured at nominalvalue. Contingent assets and liahilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or
payablerespectively.

Note 17. Ex-gratia payments Note 19. Events subsequent to

VicHealth made no ex-gratia payments duringthe years ended balance date

30June 2017 or 30 June 2016. o .
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past

transactionsorother pastevents. Where the transactions

result fromanagreement between VicHealth and other parties,
Note 18 ECOI’]OI’nIC SUppOrt Fhetransactlonsareonlyrecogmsedvvhentheagregmenhs

irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting period.
VicHealthis wholly dependent on the continued financial

support of the State Government and in particular, the Adjustmentsare made to amounts recognisedin the financial
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). VicHealth statements for events which occur after the reporting period
has a three-year service agreement with DHHS, which and before the date the financial statementsare authorised for
commenced in July 2015. VicHealth’s budget is required to be issue, where those events provide information about conditions
submitted to the Minister for Health for approval annually, as which existed in the reporting period. Note disclosureis made
per the requirements of the Tobacco Act 1987. abouteventsbetweentheendofthereporting period and the

date the financial statements are authorised forissue, where
the eventsrelate to conditions which arose after the end of the
reporting period, and which may have a materialimpact on the
results of subsequentreporting periods.

There have beennoeventsthat have occurred subsequent to
30 June 2017 which would, in the absences of disclosure, cause
the financial statements to become misleading.
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Section 6: Disclosure index

Theannualreportof VicHealthis preparedinaccordance with allrelevant Victorian legislation. This index has been prepared to
facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation Requirement Pagereference

Ministerial Directions

Charter and purpose

FRD 22H Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers Page 8
FRD 22H Purpose, functions, powers and duties Page 8
FRD 22H Nature and range of services provided Page 8

Management and structure

FRD 22H Organisational structure Page 27

Financialand otherinformation

FRD 10A Disclosure index Page 86
FRD11A Disclosure of ex gratiaexpenses Page 85
FRD21C Responsible person and executive officer disclosures Pages 39,81,84
FRD 22H Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012 Page 42

FRD 22H Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 Page 42

FRD 22H Compliance with buildingand maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 Page 42

FRD 22H Details of consultancies over $10,000 Page 40
FRD 22H Details of consultancies under $10,000 Page 40
FRD 22H Employmentand conduct principles Page 35
FRD 22H Information and Communication Technology Expenditure Page 41

FRD 22H Major changes or factors affecting performance Page 26
FRD 22H Operationaland budgetary objectives and performance against objectives Page 20
FRD 24C Reporting of office-based environmentalimpacts Page 42

FRD 22H Significant changesin financial position during the year Page 26
FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy Page 42

FRD 22H Subsequent events Pages 26, 85
FRD 22H Summary of the financial results for the year Page 25
FRD 22H Additionalinformation available on request Page 42

Workforce Data Disclosuresincludinga statement on the application of employment

FRO22H and conduct principles Page 35
FRD 25C Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures Page 42
FRD 29B Workforce Datadisclosures Page 35
FRD 103F Non-Financial Physical Assets Page 66
FRD 110A Cash flow Statements Page 51
SD5.2.3 Declarationinreport of operations Page 7

SD3.7.1 Risk management framework and processes Page 43
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Legislation Requirement

Ministerial Directions

Page reference

Other requirements under Standing Directions 5.2

SD5.2.2 Declarationin financial statements Page 45
$05.2.1(2) gsgztriiatr;i;ev\éviptrf;ﬁtszarii;Znatcscountingstandards andother Pages 45, 53
SD5.2.1(a) Compliance with Ministerial Directions Page 53
Legislation

Freedom of Information Act 1982 Page 42
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 Page 42
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 Page 42
Building Act 1993 Page 42
Financial Management Act 1994 Page 53

Report of Operations
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